MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

incoln University enjoyed another successful year in 2006-07. Presented in this publication are clear indi-
cators of our commitment to achieve excellence in all that we do to produce graduates with the potential to

make a difference in their communities.

We are confident that our revised curriculum and enhanced learning resources provide the foundation for the best pos-
sible education for Lincoln students today and into the future. That is crucially important against a backdrop of con-

stantly changing trends in higher education.

This year represents another major step toward achieving the goals set forth in the university’s remarkable Strategic Plan.
Renovations to a number of buildings have been completed or are near completion. Faculty and students will have
returned to state-of-the-art improved University Hall and Ware Center by the time this publication is available for dis-
tribution. It is our anticipation to soon break ground for a $40.5 million General Classroom and High Technology
Science Building and we expect the newly renovated Student Union Building to be available for occupancy by the fall

semester of 2008.

Many constituents are working together on Lincoln’s quest for excellence. Our dedicated and committed faculty con-
tinues to challenge and assist our students as they strive to reach their full potential. The staff does an outstanding job

in providing extramural activities to complement the vitality of our academic programs.

A trend that we hope to carry well into the future is the increase in alumni contributions achieved during this academic
year. Their investment in the university confirms our commitment and supports our effort to position Lincoln
University as the choice of students in the region. Alumni contributions also provide financial assistance to deserving

students as the cost of attaining a higher education escalates at a rapid pace.

As we confront the challenges of the future, we could do no less than to redouble our efforts to Advance the Lincoln

legacy.

Very truly yours,

Ivory V. Nelson, Ph.D.

President
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he Academic Affairs division has a core mission of

sustaining a nurturing learning environment capa-

ble of transforming its learners into academic

achievers, professional contributors, and leaders in
their fields of interest.

The 2006-07 academic year brought continued progress
in Lincoln University’s commitment to produce the caliber
of graduates who can thrive in the culturally diverse, tech-
nological and global society in which they will live and
work. The division is proud of its enduring legacy of out-
standing teaching and mentoring of a wide cross-section of
students. Approximately 2300 from within the United States
and 100 from international origins.

The university welcomed the class of 2010, the first
freshmen cohort to study under a new, more academically
rigorous undergraduate curriculum with its more compact,
interdisciplinary core. The revised curriculum enhances the
recently established five Centers of Excellence, including the
new Lincoln-Barnes Visual Arts major in the School of
Humanities and Graduate Studies.

With selected minor concentrations in Museum and
Collections Studies, Museum Education, Museum
Communications and Professional Studio, the Barnes part-
nership seeks to create leaders in the cultural arts and muse-
um genre through a unique educational experience. Unlike
any other art program in the nation, the Barnes partnership
has the core component of enabling students to study at a
museum and come face-to-face with a collection of paintings

by world famous artists.

The School of Social Sciences and Behavioral Studies
continues the advancement of its Center of Excellence in
Business and Information Technology, which is equipping
its banking, management, and accounting majors in all
facets of enterprise resource planning, management, and
entrepreneurial development. The uniqueness of this center
provides students at Lincoln University the prospect of
transforming an idea into a marketable product to create
employment opportunities and wealth.

The Center of Excellence in Teacher Education and
Urban Pedagogy focuses on enhancing the ability of Lincoln
University to help reverse the declining number of teachers
in kindergarten through high school. This will be achieved
by equipping students with the skills to provide young learn-
ers with the knowledge and tools to be successful in institu-
tions of higher education or the workforce.

Under the guidance of the faculty of the School of
Natural Sciences and Mathematics, the Center of Excellence
in Computational Science at Lincoln University will endeav-
or to be a key player in resolving the most important and
complex scientific questions of the 21st Century. The center
will concentrate on applications in environmental science,
material science and biomedical science. This will enable
graduates of Lincoln University to join the ranks of profes-
sionals engaged in understanding the complexities of alterna-
tive energy and biotechnology and resolving problems that
are impossible by theory and physical experimentation alone.
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Now completing its third year of operation, Lincoln’s
Excellent Academic Program in Science (L.E.A.P.S.), a $2.4
million program funded by the National Science Foundation,
identifies and provides a pre-freshman summer bridge pro-
gram for talented high schools seniors (31 in 2006-07) and is
a retention-building centerpiece of this Center of Excellence.
This program will position Lincoln University to significant-
ly increase the number of science and mathematics majors
enrolling in graduate and professional schools.

In the area of student research, science majors regularly
participate in summer research internships and Lincoln’s
annual science fair as well as poster sessions sponsored by the
Philadelphia Alliance for Minority Participation and the
University of Florida.

Furthermore, Lincoln’s School of Natural Sciences and
Mathematics has concluded a major agreement with the
School of Engineering of Morgan State University to begin a
dual degree program in civil and industrial engineering.
Participants will receive a bachelor’s degree in physics from
Lincoln and in engineering from Morgan in a three-two for-
mat (three years at Lincoln and two at Morgan).

Other achievements during the year included approval of
Lincoln’s Teacher Certification Programs by the Pennsylvania
Department of Education. Those programs are Early
Childhood Education, Elementary Education, Secondary
Education with English, Spanish, French, Music, History,
Political Science, Social Studies Certification, Mathematics,
and Biology as cognate areas. Graduate Reading, Elementary
Education, and Early Childhood Education also received
approval.

Significantly, Lincoln University was the only institu-
tion—state-related or private independent—to join a consor-
tium of the fourteen state-owned universities and fourteen
community colleges to undertake a major “articulation” proj-
ect. Its purpose is to define general education, course credit
equivalency among the schools to ease the transfer of stu-
dents between the schools. Continuing through 2007-2008,
the project will evaluate over a thousand courses in the build-
ing of a database of courses (managed by AcademyOne) that
are immediately transferable among the twenty-nine partici-
pating institutions.

Faculty and students continued to distinguish them-
selves, increasing national recognition for the university. Dr.
Kenneth  VanDover, of the English and Mass
Communications Department, spent a year lecturing on
detective fiction and theory and the development of the
novel in the University of Vienna in Austria as a Fulbright
Scholar. Dr. Emmanuel Babatunde, of the Sociology and
Anthropology Department, was appointed a Fulbright Senior
Specialist and lectured on anthropology at the Eduardo
Mondland University in Mozambique, Africa.

Recipients of the Board of Trustees Distinguished Faculty
Awards were Dr. Jeffrey Hoogeveen, winner of the Hildrus S.
Poindexter Distinguished Faculty Award for Research; Dr.
Babatunde, winner of the Soraya M. Coley Distinguished
Faculty Award for Service; and Dr. Goro Nagase, winner of

the Henry Cornwall Distinguished Faculty Award for
Teaching. Dr. Marilyn Button, chair of the Department of
English and Mass Communications, received the Christian
R. and Mary Lindback Outstanding Teaching Award.

Members of the faculty were engaged in continuous
research efforts while a $4.2 million award from the
Pennsylvania Department of Health was won to study col-
orectal cancer among residents in Northeast Pennsylvania.
Drs. Anna Hull and Karen Baskerville will collaborate on the
study.

Additionally, the university was awarded a pair of
$500,000 grants, one from the Department of Defense to
investigate protein dynamics by using a single molecule spec-
troscope and another from NASA and the Department of
Defense to recruit and retain minority physics and pre-engi-
neering majors. Dr. Derrick Swinton will investigate protein
dynamics and Dr. Willie Williams is the principal investiga-
tor for the grant from NASA and the Department of Defense.

Students, on the other hand, achieved national recogni-
tion in a competitive academic arena. Senior accounting
major Rumbi Tabvuma won first place in a national oratori-
cal contest held in Indianapolis, Ind. Meanwhile, Briquel
Sherman, Anthony Sherland and Talisha Cook were among
winners at the Annual Biomedical Research Conference for
Minority Students held in Anaheim, Calif.

Twaonstudents confer on their assignment
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President Nelson administers the oath of office for
members of the Student Government Association

STUDENT AFFAIRS & ENROLLMENT MANAGEMENT

n its continuing effort to enhance the quality of the living and

learning environment at Lincoln, the Division of Student

Affairs and Enrollment Management (SAEM) continued to

augment the numerous programs, activities and services avail-
able to students at the university. Life outside the classroom is more
vibrant and stimulating perhaps than anytime before in the history
of the university, given the numerous new initiatives that are cur-
rently occurring on the campus.

With each passing year, Lincoln becomes more popular as wit-

nessed by the record number of applications for admission that we
are receiving annually. In 2006-07, both the undergraduate and
graduate admissions offices achieved new enrollment records by
enrolling the largest number of new undergraduate and graduate
students in university history. With these records, the university
also broke its previous year’s record for overall student enrollment by
enrolling a total of 2,423 students for the academic year.
The university continues also to set records for Open House atten-
dance and the number of visitors to the campus annually. In addi-
tion to the great admissions news, Lincoln’s retention rate for first-
time freshman increased, showing that not only are more students
matriculating, more students are also staying to take advantage of
the full Lincoln experience.

The division of SAEM continued to offer students a wide array
of co-curricular academic support programs and experiential learn-
ing experiences via the Learning Resource Center and Act 101
Achievement Program, the Office of International Programs and
Services (including study abroad), the Office of Minority Male
Health and the Office of Student Life and Development.

The LRC and Act 101 Achievement Program continued to offer
supplemental instruction and tutoring in reading, writing and math
for all students enrolled in developmental courses and provided spe-
cialized counseling and programs for students enrolled in the Act
101 program.

The study abroad and service learning numbers continue to rise
as students continue to study in virtually every continent with new
programs in Argentina, Ireland, Ecuador and Cambodia, as well as
increased enrollment at the university-sponsored program in Japan.

The Office of Minority Male Health continued community out-
reach efforts on and off campus as it daily demonstrated a concern
for the health and welfare of our students and local community res-
idents. The office started a mentoring program with local middle
school students and continued to offer its LU Fitness Challenge
programs. In addition, the Upward Bound program continued its
SMARTS (Stay Motivated and Reduce Teen Smoking) initiative
and the Women’s Center and Student Health Services conducted a
massive HIV and AIDS campaign and made available on campus
rapid testing for students on two occasions during the academic
year.

The Office of Student Life and Development and Department of
Residence Life engaged in collegial competition as it sought to bring
new and requested programs to the students of Lincoln University.
The office continued to operate the New Student Orientation and
Transition Week program and its First Year Experience Program for
new students, which is undoubtedly one of the key mechanisms in
the increased first-year student retention rate. To augment the pos-
itive retention data on first year students, the Office of Student
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Services began the planning and development of a Sophomore
Experience Program, with implementation set for the 2007-08 aca-
demic year.

One of the greatest areas of achievement within the division has
been the provision of services to all students enrolled at the
University.

During the 2006-07 academic year, safety and security received a
major boost with the significant capital purchase of a CCTV camera
surveillance system for the entire campus. With the implementation
of over 120 cameras throughout the campus, many with point, tlt
and zoom capability, the Department of Public Safety is able to visu-
ally patrol all 422 acres of the university campus. The immediate
payback for this system was seen throughout the academic year as
department personnel were able to use this system to prevent and
solve numerous cases on campus.

The student body and university community continue to be excit-
ed about the passage and implementation of the Student
Enhancement Initiative, a Board of Trustees approved resolution that
returns football and a marching band to the campus and allows
Lincoln to transfer from NCAA Division III to Division II intercol-
legiate athletics and affiliating with the Central Intercollegiate
Athletic Association.

The Department of Athletics continued to bring aboard new full-
time staff members as the transition is being implemented. The stu-
dent body is overflowing with excitement and anticipation of the
realization of the enhancements. Meanwhile, student participation in
the marching band and athletics grew quickly during the school year.
However, in its last year of Division III competition, the Lincoln
University men’s indoor track team won the 2006-07 Indoor
National Championship, the seventh such title for the university and
head coach Cyrus Jones. The men’s basketball team advanced to the
Sweet 16 of Division III national tournament for the second year in
a row and the women’s basketball team participated in post-season
play for the second year in a row while amassing a university record
for wins in a single season.

All academic buildings on campus have or soon will be renovated.
In 2006-07, a $12 million renovation project began on the Student
Union Building as well as Phase I of making the campus wireless. To
augment all that is happening programmatically, the university is
continuing to renovate and build facilities to meet the needs and
desires of current students and to attract new students.

The year represented another step in sustained determination by
the division to make Lincoln University one of the most student-cen-
tered campuses in the nation.

STUDENT AFFAIRS & ENROLLMENT MANAGEMENT
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FISCAL AFFAIRS

ajor renovations and input for design, quality control
and coordination on the many Commonwealth-fund-
ed construction projects took place on the main cam-

pus.

vided assistance of capital projects in progress. The maintenance and

During the year, Physical Plant personnel pro-
upgrade of our facilities during this period included:

e LLC Auxiliary Boiler

e University Hall Renovations and Furniture/Fixtures/ Equipment
* Ware Center and Furniture/Fixtures/ Equipment

* Back-up Generator

* HVAC Systems and Controls

 Asbestos Abatement

* Roof Upgrades

e Life Science Ventilation Upgrades

The university is in the planning stages of additional upgrades or
new construction. They include a $40.5 million General Classroom
and Technology Building, an International Center and renovations
of Langston Hughes Memorial Library and Wright Hall.

Additionally, plans are under way to construct a tennis court and
softball field and an academic center for learning and counseling.
All of these efforts contributed to a new look and the air of anticipa-
tion as most academic buildings and the campus landscape will
undergo modernization or be supplanted by larger, new structures
and a dynamic new vista.

In addition the Graduate Center campus is undergoing a dramat-
ic transformation. An outside developer is investing $29 million to

completely renovate and modernize the building. The university will
occupy two floors in the renovated facility. The building will house
efficient, all new equipment and interiors at one of the premier loca-
tions in Philadelphia.

Information Technology (IT) infrastructure, risk management,
disaster recovery and improved administrative systems were the issues
driving the direction of the University’s Information Technology
department.

Many upgrades supported the renovation of the new buildings
including replacement of the University’s voice mail system, com-
pletely new equipment and furniture for renovated buildings, expan-
sion of the wireless network, conversion to a new, renumbered direct
dial phone system for better security, new security cameras, a new
administrative LionCard to allow electronic payment across the cam-
pus for auxiliary enterprises, including laundry, books, meals and
copying in the library. New pianos also have been purchased and
Smartboards have been placed in classrooms.

The implementation of the new Datatel COLLEAGUE system for
general ledger, accounts payable, purchasing, payroll, budgets,
admissions, billing, student housing and registrar remained at the
forefront of IT operations. During the year, all relevant users began
intensive Datatel training to prepare for the upstart and smooth tran-
sition to the new system.

The upgrades in IT and refurbishments in Physical Plant high-
lighted the university’s efforts to provide a safe and efficient work
environment and maintain our facilities and support services at a
level conducive to learning.

6
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DEVELOPMENT & EXTERNAL RELATIONS

n 2006-07, the Division of Development and External
Relations sustained its momentum of increasing donations
from various sources and winning friends for the university
through a well-conceived approach.

The division supported the initiatives of the president to enhance
national and international awareness of the university’s growing
impact on teaching, research and community outreach. The division
played a key role in the institution’s successful effort to establish an
academic partnership with the University of Science and Technology
in Rivers State, Nigeria.

Moreover, the division supported the newly formed collaboration
with The Barnes Foundation to implement a bachelor of arts degree
program. The Barnes Foundation collaboration is the first of its kind
in the nation and has gained the status as a Center of Excellence.

The division has been actively involved in promoting the high
achievements of faculty, staff, students and alumni in the various
media. For example, articles on some aspect on the university
appeared in Diverse Issues in Higher Education, Ebony and Jet mag-
azines. The Office of Public Relations made special effort to keep
university constituents, including alumni and major donors, aware of
new developments primarily through two publications, The Lincoln
Review and The Lincoln Lion.

Throughout the year, students gained firsthand knowledge about
current issues and future trends in business and industry from senior
executives of Fortune 500 companies under the leadership of the

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 2006-2007

l.--inh-..-“.

Sty ol
Hissssiis s

Executive in Residence program. This program also features person-
al interaction between students and senior level executives.

Among executives participating in the program was former Emmy
awarding winning CNN anchor Valerie Morris, Shannon Moore, a
regional Vice President with Enterprise Rent-a-Car and John
O’Brien, vice president of Emerging Brands at AstraZeneca
Pharmaceuticals.

In an enduring commitment to assist students in workforce pre-
paredness, the division again sponsored a career fair for undergradu-
ate students that attracted 90 representatives from various business
and educational entities.

Additionally, the division conducted career fairs for graduate stu-
dents interested in pursuing a career in medicine and law. Over 600
students took advantage of the opportunities to learn more about
advanced degrees in areas where African-Americans and other
minorities are underrepresented.

A remarkable achievement was the overall increase of contribu-
tions from the university’s various constituents. With the aid of 264
first-time donors, alumni giving increased from $426,007 a year ago
to $478,580. There was also a significant increase in overall contri-
butions, which nearly tripled from $1,938,493 to $3,335,349.

The charts below represent fundraising and departmental activities
for the year.



DEVELOPMENT & EXTERNAL RELATIONS

Capital Campaign and Contributions Report

Enriching the Campus Physical Environment $243,653,308
Endowment(Recruitment/Retention of Top Students/Faculty) $10,839,858

Advancing the Quest for Quality Technology $2,200,000

Ensuring Quality Academic Programs $5,723,647

Total $262,416,813

Summary of Fiscal Year-end Gifts

Contributions 06-07 05-06 04-05

Unrestricted $ 299,978 $ 302,921 $ 242,668

Temporary Restricted $1,698,693 $ 543,580 $517,714

Permanent Restricted $1,360,678 $1,082,708 $ 541,272

In-kind $ 4759 $ 9,284 $ 2,500

Total $3,364,108 $1,938,493 $1,304,154

Individual Contributions

264 First-time Donors(68% of Donors) $10,135.00 (18% of Total)
78 Active Donors  (20% of Donors) $40,184.25 (71% of Total)
48 Inactive Donors (12% of Donors) $ 6,250.00 (11% or Total)
Subtotal $ 56,569.25

Other Funding $175,000.00

Total $231,569.25

Alumni Relations

Alumni Giving 06-07 05-06 04-05

Number of Contributors 1040 687 642

Total Amount $482,580 $426,007 $476,810

Average Amount of Gift $464 $620 $743

Career Fairs

Attendance: 250 Students
Organizations: 90
29 Corporations
27 School Districts

25 Government Agencies

9 Non-Profit Agencies
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DEVELOPMENT & EXTERNAL RELATIONS

Graduate Fairs

Students Attending

Schools Participating

Medical 185 8
Law 125 7
General 312 19
Medical/Law School Visits
Medical Students Attending
Temple School of Medicine 7
Thomas Jefferson University 2
Law
Temple University Beasley School of Law 7
Penn State Dickinson School of Law 6
Villanova University 2
Roger Williams University, RI 7
Executive in Residence Program
Speaker Classes Attendance
Charles Terrell, Ed.D., VP Af. Am. People 32
Div. of Diversity Policy & Programs Biological Technique 19
Assoc. of American Medical Colleges
Shannon Moore, Regional VP Marketing 24
Enterprise Rent-a-Car HR Management 30
Prod. & Operation Mgmt. 5
J. M. Herr, Chairman/CEO Bus. Communications 11
Herr Foods, Inc. Princ. Of Acceg. 11 22
Princ. Of Acctg. 11 25
Payne Brown, VP Comp. African Politics 11
Strategic Initiatives African American Exp. 17
Comcast Corporation
John O’Brien, VP Oral Communications 28
Emerging Brands Senior Seminar 15
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals, LP
Peter B. Alois, President/Founder Oral Communications 21
Alois Global Trade Strategies, LLC Inc’l. Fin. Mgmt. 6
J. Everett Prewitt, President African American Exp. 27
Northland Research Company Mass Media & Society 14
Victoria Wyeth, Wyeth Family Art Expert Drawing I/Intro. To Media 25

Brandywine River Museum

& Color

TOTALS:

8 Speakers

332 Students
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DEVELOPMENT & EXTERNAL RELATIONS

Women in Leadership Series

Barbara Gee, VD, Strategic Sales Alliances, Comcast Cable Communications LLC
Rev. Lorina Marshall-Blake, VP, Government Relations, Independence Blue Cross
Kimberly Reed, Regional Diversity Recruit. Mgr., Deloitte Services LP

Gary Michelson Executive Leadership Lecture Series

Fourth Annual Lincoln University Chester County Economic Outlook Breakfast

National Preparatory Examination Courses

Graduate Record Examination (GRE)
Law School Admission Test (LSAT)
Medical College Admission Test (MCAT)
PRAXIS (Education)

TOTAL

The Commieneement procession takes on special

meanini ﬁ the candidates for graduation

25 Students

70 Students

Number of Students
14
21
12

13
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GRANTS & CONTRACTS 2006-2007

Awards by Funding Source

No. of Awards

Total Awarded

Federal 7 $2,447,010
State 10 $3,143,381
Private 7 $154,036
Total 24 $5,744,427
Faculty Involvement by School Federal State
Humanities & Graduate 0 0

Natural Sciences & Mathematics 3 1

Social Sciences & Behavioral Sciences 1 5

Other 3 4

Total 7 10
Awards by Department/School Federal State Private
Humanities & Graduate 0 0 1

Natural Sciences & Mathematics 3 1 3

Social Sciences & Behavioral Sciences 1 5 1

Other 3 4 2

Total 7 10 7

Award Amounts by Department/School Federal State
Humanities & Graduate $0 $0

Natural Sciences & Mathematics $522,000 $15,403
Social Sciences & Behavioral Sciences $54,000 $1,094,065
Other $1,871,010 $2,033,913
Total $2,447,010 $3,143,381
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Funding Agencies

GRANTS & CONTRACTS 2006-2007

Humanities &

Natural Sciences

Social Sciences

Graduate Studies & Mathematics & Behavioral Studies | Other
Federal Total Amount | Total | Amount | Total Amount | Total Amount Total

Awards | Awarded | Awards Awarded | Awards Awarded |Awards Awarded | Awarded
National Science
Foundation (NSF) 1 $6,000 $6,000
US Department of
Education (USED) 1 $1,868,410 $1,868,410
National Aeronautics and
Space Administration (NASA) 1 $16,000 $16,00
National Endowment
for the Humanities 2 $2,600 $2,600
National Institutes of Health 1 $54,000 $54,000
US Department of Energy 1 $500,000 $500,000
Total 0 $0 3 $522,000 1 $54,000 3 $1,871,010 $2,447,010
State
Pennsylvania Department
of Education 2 $2,030,000 $2,030,000
Pennsylvania Department
of Health 1 $15,403 4 $1,079,785 $1,095,188
Pennsylvania Historical and
Museum Commission 1 $14,280 $14,280
Pennsylvania Humanities
Council 2 $3,913 $3,913
Total 0 $0 1 $15,403 5 $1,094,065 4 $2,033,913 $3,143,381
American Society for
Cell Biology 1 $7,343 $7,343
E. Kneale Dockstader
Foundation 1 $15,002 $15,002
Educational Advancement
Alliance 1 $25,000 $25,000
Institute for International
Education 1 $66,480 $66,480
Lindback Foundation 1 $14,225 1 $14,986 $29,211
United Way of Southeastern
Pennsylvania 1 $11,000 $11,000
Total 1 $14,225 3 $37,331 1 $25,000 2 $77,480 $154,036
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GRANTS & CONTRACTS 2006-2007

Federal
Program Agency Amount
Determination of Atrazine Concentration in Water
Samples by High Performance Liquid Chromatography National Aeronautics and Space Administration/Pennsylvania State University $16,000
Looking At: Jazz, America's Art Form National Endowment for the Humanities/American Library Association $1,000
General Survey and Pilot Project--Lincoln University
Audiotape Collection National Endowment for the Humanities $1,600
Office of Research Development, Planning
and Coordination National Institutes of Health/NICHD $54,000
The Role of Tryptophan Metabolism in Auxin
Homeostasis: Supplement National Science Foundation $6,000
Title IIT U.S. Department of Education $1,868,410
Characterization of Piezoelectric and Other Materials U.S. Department of Energy/National Nuclear Security Administration $500,000
State
Program Agency Amount
Centers of Excellence, Retention Strategies, Student
Life Enhancement and Technology Upgrade Pennsylvania Department of Education $2,000,000
Distribution and Numbers of Cryptosporidium
Oocysts in a Rural Watershed Pennsylvania Department of Health $15,403
Horace Mann Bond Leslie Pinckney Hill Scholarship
funds for outreach and recruitment Pennsylvania Department of Education $30,000
Improving Tobacco Dependence
Treatment in Underserved Smokers Pennsylvania Department of Health/University of Pennsylvania $14,168
Center for the Study of Gene-Environment
Interactions in Lung Cancer Pennsylvania Department of Health/University of Pennsylvania $222,256
Primary Care Network for the Treatment
of Adolescent Obesity Pennsylvania Department of Health/Children's Hospital of Philadelphia $267,643
Gene-Environment Interactions and
Colon Cancer in Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Department of Health/PSU College of Medicine $575,718
Black History Conference Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission $14,280
Between Two Worlds Pennsylvania Humanities Council $3,000
Jazz Film Series Pennsylvania Humanities Council $913
Private
Program Agency Amount
American Society for Cell Biology Minority Affairs Committee Linkage Fellow Award $7,343
E. Kneale Dockstader Foundation Lincoln University and Stroud Water Research Collaboration $15,002
Educational Advancement Alliance BIT Technology Center of Excellence Initiative $25,000
Institute for International Education Fulbright Summer Pre-Academic Program $66,480
Lindback Foundation Vulnerability of Cholinergic Neurons in Alzheimer's Disease $14,986
Lindback Foundation Examining Writing Across the Curriculum Pedagogy and

Technology Integration at Historically Black Colleges and Universities $14,225
United Way of Southeastern Pennsylvania Innovative Strategies for Increasing the Number

of African American Male Mentors $11,000

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 2006-2007

13



LINCOLN UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTORS 2006-2007

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year

Category of Donors 2006-2007 2005-2006 2004-2005 2003-2004
Churches 31,050 7,004 2,400 3,700
Alumni 383,428 317,773 354,451 475,468
Corporations/Foundations 511,348 592,101 347,373 1,068,914
Trustees 17,519 9,680 8,600 15,450
Alumni Trustees 92,816 105,459 119,319 81,858
Faculty & Staff 36,882 20,730 13,421 28,497
Alumni Faculty & Staff 6,336 2,775 3,040 20,730
Individuals 2,030,607 711,427 31,291 76,566
Organizations 34,034 12,547 18,400 33,937
Alumni Estates 18,066 94,487 48,603 41,206
Other Estates 135,000 1,847 299,737 -
Students - 25 - 20
Special Events 67,023 62,639 57,520 113,065
Grand Total $ 3,364,108 $ 1,938,493 $ 1,304,154 $ 1,959,412
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Category of Contributions 2006-2007 2005-2006 2004-2005 2003-2004
Unrestricted 299,978 302,936 242 668 347,101
Temporary Restricted 1,698,693 668,830 517,714 1,213,878
Permanant Restricted/Endowed 1,360,678 957,459 541,271 387,468
In-Kind Gifts 4,759 9,284 2,500 10,965
Total $ 3,364,108 $ 1,938,493 $ 1,304,154 $ 1,959,412
2006-2007 2005-2006 2004-2005 2003-2004
Amount No. of Alumni No. of Alumni No. of Alumni No. of Alumni
$5000 and Above 27 23 24 31
$2500 to $4999 27 22 24 30
$1000 to $2499 91 104 84 121
Subtotal 145 149 132 182
($1000 and Above)
$500 to $999 68 100 74 94
$250 to $499 49 59 79 136
$100 to $249 149 183 185 298
$50 to $99 103 55 76 132
$49 and Below 526 141 96 185
TOTAL ALUMNI 1,040 687 642 1,027
Average Gift $478 $758 $818 $604
for Individuals
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$25,000 and Above

Anonymous

Bethany Baptist Church

Elmer Roe Deaver Foundation

James W. Jordan ‘88

Christian & Mary Lindback Foundation
His Excellency Dr. Peter O. Chinwe Odili
Estate of Clara M. Tarry

Wachovia Bank, N.A.

$10,000 - $24,999

Anonymous 12/20 and 12/31

Dr. Herman P Bailey ‘38

E. Kneale Dockstader Foundation
Dolfinger-McMahon Foundation
Howell Lockhart Seiple Trust #1
Estate of Langston Hughes *29
The Laffey-McHugh Foundation
Rev. Thomas W. S. Logan, Sr. *35
Dr. Goro Nagase

Dr. Ivory V. Nelson

Gregory B. Patrick

Tehma H. Smith “00

Trizec Properties, Inc.

Verizon Foundation

$5,000 - $9,999

Robert L. Archie, Jr., Esq. 65
Keith E. Brown ‘73

Dr. Walter D. Chambers *52
Warren R. Colbert, Sr. 68

Rev. Charles A. Coverdale “65
Dr. James A. Donaldson 61
Bishop David G. Evans ‘74
Michael B. Hill

William B. Ingram 61

William C. King, Esq. ‘73
Everett T. Love ‘94

Thurgood Marshall Scholarship Fund, Inc.
Thomas L. McGill, Jr. Esq. *68
Gary A. Michelson “66

Gregory C. Miller, St. *77

Dr. Thomas O. Mills, Jr. *57
Rev. Calvin S. Morris, Ph.D. “63
National City Bank

Stephen L. Patrick ‘71

Wayne C. (*74) & Dr. Adrienne G. (*76) Rhone
Dwight S. Taylor *68

Edward S. Terry ‘57

Dr. Noble L. Thompson, Jr. *64
Dr. John R. Young ‘57

$2,500 - $4,999

Albertsons'

Roosevelt Allen, Jr. 82

Philip A. Beslow, Jr. *57

Carol A. Black, Esq. *67

Rose M. Bowen-Lewis ‘75
Howard Caesar 54

Dade Behring

Vernon E. Davis “86

Delta Sigma Theta - Zeta Omega Chapter
André E. Dixon

Dr. Reginald E. Gilliam, Jr. 65
Dr. Don N. Harris ‘51

Herr's Food, Inc.

Edward C. Hill, Jr. *67
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Tracey ]. Hunter (*87) & Kathleen J. B. (*89) Hayes
Trapier J. Jervay 65

Lee E. Johnson ‘72

Dr. Robert C. Johnson, III *67
Dr. David E. Knox *72

James T. Lewis

Kimberly A. Lloyd ‘94

Dr. Edgar O. Mandeville 63
Phyllis L. McCallum *71

Dr. Donald L. Mullett *51
Marc D. (*67) & Susan B. Pevar
Rev. Andrew H. Ransom ‘53
William H. Rivers, Jr. *57
William A. Robinson *42

Dr. Abdulalim A. Shabazz *49
Joan A. Simpson ‘76

The Hon. Ruth E. Smith 81
Sodexho Campus Services
T/U/W Irene Cunningham
Walgreens

Brenda J. Walker *74

‘West Insurance Group

$1,000 - $2,499

Dr. Robert L. Albright *66
Arthur D. Allen, Jr. 76
Alpha Boule, Inc.

Henry R. Alston *82
Mark L. Amerson ‘87
Paul M. Anderson

Lisa Y. Andrews ‘87
Donald M. Anthony ‘96
Howard Atkinson, Jr. 72
Awin Management, Inc.
Dr. Lula A. Beatty “71

Dr. Leonard L. Bethel *61
Eugene S. Bivins, 111 57
Blank Rome LLP

Paula O. Blunt 72

Dr. William C. Brown '60
Howard H. Brown, Esq. ‘68
James W. Burks, Jr. *59
Dr. William B. Bynum, Jr.
Roy E. Chaney ‘73
Annette C. Collier *86
Lester N. Coney

Dr. Joseph Daniels *53

Amb. Horace G. Dawson, Jr. ‘49
Deborah Grand Chapter

Jennelle L. Derrickson ‘75
Dixwell Avenue Congregational United Church
J. Mario Dossat ‘87

Stuart J. Dunning, Jr., Esq. *47
Prof. Robert E. Engs

Enterprise Rent-A-Car

Howard L. Erwin *42

Charles S. Farrell *73

Frederick C. Foard *67

Dr. Harry E. Ford, III *67

Linda M. Franklin *72

Fulton Bank

The Hon. Levan Gordon *58

Dr. Milford W. Greene

Thomas P. Gunn ‘66

Dr. Eddison R. Hairston, Sr. ‘54
Dr. Lanniece Hall “98

Dr. Walter W. Haynes “43
George T. Jr. (*71) & Portia M. (*77) Hedgespeth
Thelma T. Henderson

David E. Herndon *71

Thelma L. Hill *71

Christopher E. Holland *87
Carleton D. Holman ‘77
Elizabeth A. Hooks ‘82

Dr. Robert L. Hudson 62

The Hon. Roderick L. Ireland ‘66
Leroy Jackson, Jr. *70

Janes United Methodist Church
Dr. Eddie Ade Knowles *70
Estate of Clifford H. Lacey *50
Ladies/Lions Aux. of Lincoln University
Sharman E Lawrence ‘98

| Dr. Herman Lawson, Jr. *67

E. Clayton Levister, 11

Simeon G. Lewis, Jr. *52

Grady Long, Jr. “67

Lewis J. Luchie 57

Dr. William W. Malloy “63

Dr. Robert H. Mann *63

Carmen T. Maxwell *82

Rosemary McBride

James E McCoy 52

Patricia H. McKinley *70

Howard E. Metlin

Timothy C. Meyers, Jr. 59

Sherley M. Mizzell 78

Dr. Soraya M. Moore-Coley ‘72

Dr. Gwinyai Muzorewa

Omega Psi Phi Fraternity - Beta Alpha Alpha Chapter
Oxford Area Chamber of Commerce
PA Association of Student Financial Aid
Dr. Vincent & Deirdre D. Pearson ‘72
The Peoples Bank of Oxford

J. Vernon Peterson ‘73

Philadelphia Alumni Association of Lincoln University
PNC Adpvisors

David R. (*69) & Stella T. (*71) Pogue
Rev. Robert A. (*82) & Carla M.(*79) Ray
Ltc. William E. Richards, Sr. 43
‘Wayne E. Rock *82

Dr. Richard A. Rollins *52

Sandra K. Ruffin-Pearson *77

George L. Russell, Jr., Esq. 50

Dr. Kenneth M. Sadler *71
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St. Luke Tabernacle Community Church
David A. Sanders *69

Ronald E Sargent *69

Rev. Dr. James A. Scott *52

Earl M. Simpkins *63

Douglas R. Simpson '62

Philip V. Skerrett *47

Frances W. Slocum

William R. Smith, 11 *76

Dr. Jothan Staley 72

Herman L. Stephenson *61

Dr. Derrick J. Swinton ‘90
Cordelia Talley *72

Wilbert A. Tatum *58

Dennis K. & Gladys L. Thomas ‘76
Dr. Alvin V. Thomas, Sr. *32
Thompson, Cobb, Bazilio & Assoc. PC
Dr. J. Cameron Thornhill *40
Raynard Toomer ‘71

Dr. Grant D. Venerable, 11

Dr. Marvin Wachman

Gladys W. Walls *55

Ann M. Warren ‘82

Nathan H. Waters, Jr., Esq. 54

Dr. Carl O. Word 69

WSES Bank

H. Delaney Young, Jr. *65

$500 - $999

Alois Global Trade Strategies LLC
Lloyd Ayers MHS 04

David E. Barnes *72

John G. Bennett 52

Dr. William E. Bennett *50
Bruce M. Benson ‘75

Robert W. Bivins ‘58

Black Fives, Inc.

Edward W. Blyden “99

Dr. Marilyn D. Button

David L. Cardwell, Sr. *52
Kelvin L. Childress *82

Sherri A. Clark *82

Alton Davis, Jr. 71

Janie Eaton-McDonald *76
Rev. William L. Eichelberger *59
Sidney Feshbach

Charles Fleming, Jr. “80

Dr. Charles E. Flowers 52
Gregory G. Fluker *82

The Hon. Aubrey Ford, Jr. 70
Fritz Enterprises, Inc.

The Garden Church Trinity United Methodist Church
Tracee W. Gilbert *99

Rev. Casper I. Glenn ‘44

Calvin L. Hackney *52

Michael J. Hancock “88

Solomon Harp, III *52

Shelley D. Harris *82

Dr. John M. Hayes 68

Denise M. Highsmith *78

Hilton Garden Inn

Jackson Immuno Research Labs, Inc.

LaDessia L. Johnson *72

Darlene Y. Kates *80

Robert E. Lawson ‘57

Kyle D. Logan “93

Kathleen O. Marshall *71
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Chrystal R. McArthur *71
Elizabeth A. McNeil *77
Francine B. Medley ‘85
William A. Miles, St. *57
John A. Mingo, Jr. *47
Anthony B. Monteiro *67
Judith M. Moore ‘72

The Hon. Jerome L. (*75) & Debra K. H. (*80)

Munford

Chukwudebelu N. Odeluga *51
Stephen T. Ovadje “02
Joanne Parker-Wright ‘73
Dr. O. Martin Pharr ‘74
Dr. Conrad R. Pope *59
Robert E Powelson

J. Everett Prewitt ‘66
Reginald L. Pulley *50
Carol Y. Rayford-Poe ‘72
Zeke Reid *72

Dr. Richard A. Rhoden 51
Dr. Cordell Richardson *68
John C. Ritchie ‘65

Theodore R. Robb
William Scott, Jr. *51

Cdr. Robert O. (*71) & Deborah C. (*72) Smith

William G. (*74) & Brenda G. (*76) Smith
William H. Smith, Esq. 70

David M. (*67) & Barbara A. (*70) Still
Jeffrey M. & Diane Swain

Deric G. Sykes *87

Dr. Julius H. Taylor *38

Theodore Thomas, Jr. 81

Dr. Richard G. Thomas, Jr."51

Lloyd E. Thornhill *52

Sandra J. Toon-Johnson *84

H. L. Wiker, Inc.

Clarence O. Williamson, Jr. *68

Dr. Gladys J. Willis

Linda A. Woodward

$250 - $499

African Episcopal Church of St. Thomas
Dr. H. Hamilton Allen ‘52

Hugh Alleyne

Willetta BaCote

Drexel Ball

Dr. Andrew H. Bass, Jr. ‘72

Dr. Richard A. Beane, Jr. ‘60
James A. Bell, Sr. *67

James D. Bishop, Esq. 79

James Bradshaw, Jr. MHS *97
Dr. McNeal Brockington, I1I *77
Frank Brown, Jr. *89

Albert M. Bryson

Ben A. Butcher ‘77

Ndubuisi O. Chijioke *84
Citizens for the Arts in PA

Anita Joyce Clay MHS "84

Dr. Frank "Tick" Coleman ‘35
Community Foundation for SE Michigan
Dr. Abib T. Conteh *72

Ulysses T. Cosby ‘70

Dr. Joseph S. Darden, Jr. 48
DKS Medical Associates, PC.
Alisa R. Drayton *90
Chukwuemeka E Ebo 00

First National Bank of Chester Cnty
Michael Gary *05

Melvin Goodwin 60

Dr. John W. Grimes 67
Thomas L. Hannah ‘76
Javonnia N. Hargrove ‘82

James W. Hudson ‘73

Jackmont Hospitality, Inc.
Raymond L. Jarrett *77

Tom Joyner Foundation
Deborah G. Little-Parker ‘72
Lombardo & Lipe

Dr. Abbes Maazaoui

Medical Consultants, Educators
Hazel L. Mingo ‘72

Dr. Lynda L. Mitchell MHS 86
George D. Mosee, Jr., Esq. *77
Bruce J. Munson 76

Richard E. Parker ‘74

Alex K. Paterson

Harold E. Peaks “72

Archie C. Pollard 65

Veronica E. Raglin *72

Dr. Felix E. Ramdial ‘70
REFCO Consultants, Inc.
Linette P. Ross *82

Dr. Susan E. Safford

Denise P. Sanderson ‘96

Victor M. Saunders ‘83

Cecil N. Sievers “73

Charlene J. Smith *69

Bonnie J. Suthern-Dejoie *63
Synterra Partners, LP

Dr. Seniboye Tienabeso ‘78
Kevan L. (*01) & Kalisha Y. (*02) Turman
University of Maryland Eastern Shore
Vanguard Modular Building Systems
Jay A. Wallace *69

Louis H. Washington, Jr. *77
Joseph L. Weicksel *70

Ennis D. Winston ‘60

Donna H. Wolfe

Charles Woodard, Jr. *64

Frank P. Worts

Charles W. C. Yancy ‘63

YMCA of The Brandywine Valley
Anthony J. Zanfordino, IV *91
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$100 - $249

Margaret Alford

Daniel E. Amianda ‘65

Dr. Alvin E. Amos

Benjamin A. Arnold, IV *77
Osayamen 1. Asemota *00
Dr. Alexine L. Atherton
Raymond Barnes *50
Kenneth C. Barry *62

Lydia D. Bell-Brooks ‘77

Dr. Clifford T. Bennett *68
Selby O. Blackett-Gill *79
Kim M. Blaney-Bivings ‘81
Donald Bouchelle *69

David Brackin Construction, LLC
Dr. Donald J. Bradt, III
Jacqueline R. Brandon *02
Edward N. (*69) & Joan G. (*74) Broadfield
William R. Brodie, Jr. “87
Shawn M. Brown ‘91
Bernard B. Brown ‘92

Diane M. Brown MHS "98
Regina M. Brown ‘93

Van Buren G. Brown ‘79
Frank S. Brown

Lucia Bruce-Richardson MHS ‘96
Chief Milton L. Bryant ‘79
Theodore H. Butcher, Sr. *62
Dennis J. Caldwell *77
Theresa Cannon *92
Keesha K. Carrington “94
Thelma Y. Carroll, Esq. *64
Iris L. Carter “07

Linda E. Chandler MHS *87
Chester County Chamber of Bus & Indus
Diane Clare *82

Roland H. Clough "62

Dr. Chanda C. Corbett “92
Francis J. Countiss, Jr. “87
Benjamin J. Crowe, III *87
Shawn A. Cubbage ‘88
Angela M. Davis ‘70

Sokoni M. Davis *94
Gregory E. Duckett *57
Dawn H. Fant “89

Leonard E. Ferguson, Jr. 77
Tandy Franklin ‘75

Tyrone W. Franklin *74
Morris D. Fried *68

Dr. Francine Fulton MHS "88
Winston H. Gandy, Sr.*54
Gloria E. Cary ‘81

Debra L. Geiger MHS 93
Nancy C. Giagnacova ‘73
Rachel L. Gibbs MHS 84
Girl Scouts of SE PA, Inc.
Otto C. Graham, Jr. *55
William L. Green ‘71

Philip G. Hampton 50

Dr. Robert H. Hanna ‘49
Karla Q. Harris *77

Tikeisha O Harris ‘00
Phyllis R. Hayes ‘76

Rep. Arthur D. Hershey
Vanessa L. Hester ‘82

Tonya S. Hicks *86

David Hightower 87
Ashley A. Hines, IV *77
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Dawn A. Holden *00

Arnold Humphrey *60
Patricia L. Hunt ‘75

Alfred L. Jackson ‘75
Jennersville Regional Hospital
The Hon. C. Darnell Jones, I
David E. Jones ‘80

Leslie D. Jones ‘85

Fontane A. Jones ‘04

Juliette Jones-Cruz “98
Ernestine E. Kates

Major Ronald L. Keene, Jr. ‘77
Key Real Estate, LLC

Donna M. Laws MHS *01
Alexander Leak ‘60

Dr. Ernest C. Levister, Jr. *58
Deborah V. Lewis “80

Sheila E. Little-Williams *90
Domingo Llopiz 84

David W. Martin 64

Patricia A. Martin-Carr ‘72
Rose-Anne S. Matthew *03

Lorene C. Mayes-Winslow ‘77
Thomas H. McIntyre ‘71

Valerie L. McKinney 90

Robert E. McMichael *54

Tia S. McNeil *05

Osa E Meekins, Jr. *72

Minnetta P Metz '72

Michael B. Mitchell, Esq. ‘67
Patricia D. Mitchell *64

Gwendolyn J. Moore “77

Paul E. Moore, Esq. 67

Sonya M. Moore “80

Dwight W. Murph 69

Tracy M. Nelson-Scott 85

North Philadelphia Health System - Administration
North Philadelphia Health System - Staff
William N. Norton ‘48

Novak Strategic Advisors

Dr. David G. Null *69

Austen I. Nwaochei *00

O'Donnell, Naccarato & Maclntosh
Thomas Peterson ‘71

Charles A. Plinton *60

Cassandra E Poe-Johnson ‘87
Presbyterian Homes

Dr. Benson W. Prigg "87

Andora J. Quinby ‘94
RETTEW Associates

Wendy ]. Rhinehart *84
Angelique M. Riley *97

Donald C. Rivera *57

The Hon. Rosalyn K. Robinson
Cheryl L. Robinson-Benion ‘77
Dr. David E. Royer

Barbara J. Russell MHS *98

Dr. Wilbert L. Sadler, Jr. 64
Raymond C. Sallay ‘92
Danielle A. Salley *02

Major Clifford Saunders USAF *62
Dr. Linzy Scott, Jr. '57

John W. Scott ‘86

The Hon. Spencer B. Seaton, Jr.
Second Baptist Church

Second Presbyterian Church
Ronke A. Shafer-Harrison *95
Harvey B. Shaw, Jr. 59

Zeone L. Short *97

George D. Sitgraves *69

Dr. William R. Smith ‘51
Renee Smith-Maddox *76
Steven C. Snyder

Morgan E. Solomon ‘03
Ronald Staton 78

Mario L. & Mae B. Stephens *78
Clarence F. Stephens

Melisa R. Stewart

Prof. Randolph N. Stone ‘68
Mary V. Tabourn-Mitchell
Shelia J. Taylor-Hawkins ‘77
Loren M. Taylor, Jr. *06
Michael C. (95) & Tullettia K. J. (*89) Taylor
The Temple Group

Paul J. Thomas 04

The Hon. W. Curtis Thomas
Vaughn L. Thomas *66
Michelle K. Thompson *87
Tomah Orthopedics, LLC
Juanita A. Trapp

Tracy A. Tucker "84

Richard A. Tucker *60

Dr. Lemuel L. Tucker *42
Andrew J. III (*77) & Debra A. E (*78) Turner
Lincoln Turner *59

Dr. James R. Tyler, Jr. *60
Marion Underwood, Sr. 53
Nathaniel H. Wallace, Jr. 74
Antoinette T. Wallace 81
Wayne Walls *69

Carol Ware Gates

Tobias W. Washington, Jr. 69
W.D.Wells & Associates, Inc.
Valerie E. West *82

Tyrone R. Whalen ‘72

Pamela G. Williams 70
Reahienia M. Williams ‘87
Odessa M. Windear '99

Beverly R. Wise *91

Ada C. Woodland

LaTosha M. Wray “00
Charlotte L. Wroton ‘84

Tina C. Yuille
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$50 - $99

Sonda M. Alexander ‘86

Mr. & Mrs. Ernest A. Allen
Michael A. & Muriel A. Alvarez *78
Rudolph K. Awotwi *07

Mr. & Mrs. Robert Bailey
William M. Barber *74
Kenneth B. Barrett *89
Donald H. Batipps ‘59
Mildred Berman

Genelle E. Betsey *86
Queenetta L. Birch 00

Stacy D. Blow *97

Rev. Gail E. Bowman

Mr. & Mrs. Earle L. Bradford, Jr.
Joyce M. Branche *02

Rachel E. Branson '99

Nina D. Brevard ‘04
Michael L. Brown ‘96

Mr. & Mrs. Jerome D. Brown
William J. Burkharct MHS *81
Erica Campbell *06

Dr. Frank H. Carr 76
Harriet A. Carter MHS *85
Rodwell E Cole *03

Dolores T. Collazo MHS *98
Victor Colter *91
Comcast-Spectacor
Nathaniel Cooper

Denard A. Cooper “01
Christopher R. Davis *07
James W. Dickey, Jr. *00
LaToya J. Dowdell *99

Dr. Lewis C. Downing ‘55
Gloria Dulan-Wilson ‘67
Maurice B. Edmead, Jr. *61
Verna W. Edwards

Dr. Anthony L. Farrow
Norman E. Fennimore ‘07
Patricia L. Ferrell *07

Joseph N. Franklin MHS 88
Deborah W. Gadsden ‘91
Fadila J. Gathers ‘93

Taniek A.Gentles ‘06

Bernice Gordon MHS 89
Marcus A. Griffith 93
Gregory A. Gruel *96

C.J. Hall

Vicki L. Harris-McAllister *77
Haverford Trust Co.

Kahlil Hopkins *06

Anthony B. Horisk

Richard Howell

Sheila T. Hughes ‘83

Hunt Engineering Co.
Donald R. Hunt ‘77

LaToye T. Jackson ‘03

Benita M. Jackson “88
William T. Jarman

George Jefferson, Jr. 59
Danielle C. Johnson ‘07
Lewis N. Johnson ‘77

Melita G. Johnson-Ali *82
Rudolph L. Johnson *07
Samantha M. Johnson MHS ‘06
Vanessa A. Johnson ‘07
Pamela A. Jones-Council 76

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTORS 2006-2007

Stefan L. Jordan ‘85

Imhotep H. Joyner *99
Gloria Keaton *75

Jeftrey M. Kennedy

Bianca C. Kennon ‘96

Tyra N. Kirkland-Starr *99
Dr. Miles C. Ladenheim, Esq.
Melania Maldonado-Hicks *00
Dr. Carl M. Mansfield ‘51
Fred D. Martin, Jr. MHS ‘04
Carla McClanahan-Claud '85
Ebony A. McDonald *03
Adrienne A. McNeil ‘02
Freida A. McNeil *72

Karen D. Mingo *06
Rolanda Mitchell-Linton ‘75
James Mobley

Markus G. Moore ‘83

Ricky T. Moyd, Jr. 00

Ihsan R. Mujahid *02
Bonnie Murdah

P. Dorothea Murray *59
Jennifer L. Myers *98

Paula S. Ogden ‘04

Tamika A. Outlaw ‘04
Quiyon N. Peters *97

Ojo J. Primus *00

Dr. Sedrick J. Rawlins *50
Alexander D. Rhodan “81
Myrilin U. Ricardo MHS 82
Frances D. Rice *78

Dr. Rodney S. St. (*87) & Heloise J. S. (*89) Ridley
Rittenhouse Eye Associates, PC
Ismael L. Rivera ‘02

Sharlene V. Roberson ‘80
Merrill R. Ross

James E. Royal

Michelle D. Sanders *07

Dr. Barbara Saunders

Dr. James E. Savage, Jr. *63
Forrest Webb Sellers *50
JoAnne Sevrain-Odom ‘97
Cynthia E. Shearin ‘72

Sylvia Small Horn

Sharon A. Smith

Janette Spencer-Davis ‘75

Nailah M. Stamp *97
William E Stevens MHS 81
Mustafa Sulaiman *01
Steven Sumter

Cornithia C. Swanson ‘89
Annett L. Taylor MHS 98
Mr. & Mrs. Sylvester Taylor
Audrey B. Thompson ‘72
Natasha D. Towles *00
Tanoy E. Traynham 01
Courtney L. Tull 07
Frederick Vincent *00
Nancy P. Walton ‘72

Sandra D. Washington ‘00
Doris Weems

Dr. Jeffrey S. Weisman
Whitney & Associates
Krystaufeux D. Williams *01
Dr. & Mrs. Richard C. Winchester

$49 and Below

Masiira Abdul-Malik *07
Aminah Adib-Muhammad *07
Atta Acheampong 05
Ezenwanyi E. Ahaghotu *01
Kelechi Ahaghotu 01
Tkechukwu V. Akabudike *00
Gregory J. Albanese

Hakim R. Ali *01

Ramona L. Alston

Rolanda J. Anderson *97
Todd A. Anderson “87
JaNaya L. Anderson *07
Matthew Archibald

Geoffrey O. Armstrong-Stewart *98
Laniqua Q. Arnold ‘07
Valerie P. Asbury "84

Aquilla L. Askew

Lloyd E. Asparagus, Jr. 68
Michele C Augustine *01
Randall E. Awe

Damian J. Bagley “88
Michael D. Bailey *91

Ranti O. Balogun ‘07

Ferri & Bernard Bannister
Kerwyn W. Barbour *00
Deneyia P. Barbour ‘05
Ralph O. Barnett, III *00
LaReneque R. Bartholomew MHS ‘04
Brian K. Bass

Rasheedah Y. Bass *99
Kimberley C. Bassett *02
Kelly V. Baumgardner ‘02
Eugena E. Beard ‘07
Jazzmyn R. Beavers *07
Dana L. Bell *97

‘Wanda J. Bell 97

Andrea Y. Benbow 02

John W. Bennett

Gregory E. Bennett '86
Robert S. Bennett

Michael A. Benson 05
Calvin J. Bernard *04
LaTanya T. Bernard-Branch ‘98
Gracie N. Berry *04
Brandon Bigelow *06

Gerard O. Bingham, Sr. *82
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Antonio A. Birch 04
Sean J. Bishop

Khaliah E Blackwell ‘99
Darryl B. Blackwell MED ‘01
Julian P. Blake *02

Elexia D. Blount

Joseph Blount, Jr. 00
Lisa A. Blunt *97
Danielle L. Booker ‘06
George M. Booker *04
Richard H. Bozzone ‘70
Denita R. Bracy *96
Rashidah M. Bradley *01
Naneka J. Braithwaite *97
Theresa R. Braswell ‘84
John J. Brennan

John L. Brewer ‘07

Jerryl Briggs

Jeffrey J. Brokaw

Darrell A. Brothers 03
John M. Brown MHS ‘01
Melissa M. Brown *90
Philip J. Brown, Jr. *69
Taliah M. Brown ‘02
Terron V. Brown *03
Tiano M. Brown 02
Anthony L. Brown *07
Lauri D. Brown-Butler *97
Frank B. Brunson *70
William A. Buckley
Andrea Budd ‘07
Charrell M. Bullard
Dumar Yow-Burgess *96
Leland H. Burris ‘51
Dwan C. Burton *05
Desiree R. Bush *05
Khalia M. Butts *03
Maurizio S. Byrd *95
Carlotta Cage

Janique L. Cambridge ‘06
Joy Campbell

Patricia S. Cannady
Heather Cannon ‘97
André L. Carr *00

Dajah Carter *04

Freddie L. Carter ‘98

Kia R. Carter *02
Wendell Carter ‘04
Joseph E. Carter *02
Brandon L. Chastang 04
Antonia M. Childers ‘05
Nadirah J. Clark ‘03
Aocean E. Clarke “04
Germel O. Eaton-Clarke “01
Richard A. Cole

Marcia Coleman

Kaelen R. Coleman 07
Taja Coleman-Jackson ‘07
Vaughn L. Coleman 89
Shauna J. Collins *01
Anjuan R. Collins 99
Rasheedah N. Collins ‘98
Anita Colon ‘07

Miriam J. Colon 07
Anthony Colson *04
Bradley S.Connell

Albert O. Cooke 07
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Jeffrey B. Cooke *89
Kathleen P. Cooper "02
Delenio B. Corbie *06
Breyann C. Corbin ‘05
Shaun M. Cottman *02
Michael Cox *02

Talisha S. Cox *07
Kiwinzi N. Crawford *01
Kelly S. Crayton-McKay *97
Brandon Creamer ‘05
Shonna N. Crisden *97
Jasmyn K. Crisp

Barry L. Cropp “06
Rosetta Crosby *07
William C. Crum *07
Carol Cruz-Robinson ‘82
LaToya ]. Dabney *02
Debbie E. Dalecki 95
Tamika R. Daniels *97
Alice L. Davenport
Desmond Davis 05
Jerrita C. Davis “00
Tamu D. Davis '97
Jamillah K. Davis ‘96
Carolyn M. Davis *07

Demond Dawkins *97
Keeshah N. Dawsonia *02
Tara DeBarrso 98

Corey E. (*00) & Nikea B. (*00) Debnam
Dr. James L. DeBoy
Delta Sigma Theta Sorority
Cherelle D. Dennis 07
Rosalind S. Derricotte, Sr.
Caroline O. Dias ‘07
Tariqah Diggs *99

Lon E. Dobbs

Christian D. Dorsey ‘95
Brian Dowling *05
Dennis M. Dumpson ‘06
Curtis O. Durham 02
Guy D. Edmondson
LaToya M. Edwards *97
Davita L. Elliott *00
Anthony J. Ennis

Stacey Etienne ‘07

The Hon. Dwight Evans
Kuan R. Evans

Tamara N. Evans *06
Edward L. Evans
Archie Eves

Mamie J. Fains
Thaddeus A. Falana *01
Leslie J. Farrell *05
Tawnya R. Farris-Redwood 76
Steven A. Fasko

Bradley R. Fidler

Jerry L. Fields “66

Dana J. Fields 02
David K. Fields-Asare ‘04
Brandon M. Fitzgerald *07
Lisa S. Flowers 07
Vivica L. Folks ‘06
Gregory ]. Forbes *97
Arnold G. Ford *06
Nzinga Foreman-Bey *00
Serena Y. Franklin 92
Diane B. Freeman

Otis W. Freeman *06
John E Frye, Jr. *84
Nikia L. Fuller *97
Frederick Fulmore ‘99
Juanita S. Fulmore *04
James M. Gant, Jr. *51
Michelle N. Gardner *03
Tynell E Gardner *00
Jamila Y. Ghani *03
Andrenna C. Gibson ‘99
Sheniequa L. Glover ‘98
Courtney J. Glover *07
Jennifer M. Grant *00
Rosalie Grant MHS ‘84
Denise K. Graves *07
Hersey E. Gray, Sr. 78
Tamia C. Gray *02
Robert K. Green, Jr. “07
Nadia R. Green ‘07
Genise D. Greene *79
Miranda M. Greenie ‘06
Darnell D. Grier *02
William E. Griggs *39
Cynthia L. Guy “00
John P Guzman

Brian S. Hagen

Kasib M. Hagin *02
Shober D. Hairston, II 97
Quentin A. Hairston ‘07
Nichelle N. Haley *98
Nathaniel N. Hall *06
Richard G. Hall *61
Marilyn Hammer
Quintel K. Harcum 03
Gari S. Harden *86
Richard F. Hardy ‘04
Ariane Hargrove *02
Tyrell L. Hargrove ‘01
Quanda L. Harrell 98
Janelle C. Harris “01
Loretta N. Harris

Alexis N. Harris ‘06
Katikka Harris 01
Keona Harris *03

Rita Hart

William 1. Hartwell, Jr. 76
Kalunji A. Hashim *06
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Joan Y. Haas

Toshiba L. Hayman *04
Richard B. Hazel *07
David L. Heiber *00

Lerin A. Hemphill 02
Michael B. Henderson 02
Steven Henderson 01
Trenita Henderson “95
Madeline J. Henderson ‘01
Desta A. Heron *07
Johnnie L. Hightower *06
Christopher Hill *76
Tavina Hill *03

James B. Hilton ‘05
Geraud A. Holloman ‘75
Neva Holloway-Eaton 79
Anitra B. Holmes 97
Jilene M. Hope ‘03

Kyle A. Horton 04

Rick L. Howard

DeShone J. Howell *02
Shane Howze ‘05

James J. Hubbard *01
Antoninette D. Huddleston *07
Jason R. Hunt *00
Nashwat D. Hussein-Sagaft *07
Eric A. Hutt *81

Dr. Faruq T. Smart Iman ‘67
Ibin M. Ingram *05
Charlayne A. Inniss *01
Willis Irving

Lee L. Jackson *03
Michael A. Jackson ‘07
Sharis B. Jackson “07

Eric G. Jamison, II *06
Phene Jean-Claude ‘95
Hakim S. Jefferson 04
Erin S. Jenkins *02

Kenya S. Jenkins ‘07
Colleen Johnson 97
Latifa A. Johnson ‘99

Ray M. Johnson *63
Christine 1. Johnson ‘97
Dorothy M. Johnson *07
Dr. Linda R. Johnson ‘85
Monique E. Johnson ‘06
Atraia A. Johnson ‘06
Candice M. Johnson ‘07
Aya Johnson

Darnell L. Johnson ‘02
Adrienne M. Jones ‘01
Alfred C. Jones ‘00
Beverly A. Jones MHS *06
Preston Jones *03

Aleesha M. Jones “03
Cyrus D. Jones

David L. Jones, IV
Shannon D. Jones-Rumph ‘98
Terri Joseph

Tawyne Justice *03

Kevin R. Kemmetmueller
Brian D. Kennedy
Dwayne M. Keys ‘06
John T. Kimber, Sr. ‘76
Joseph P. King *06

Jamed Kinsey *00
Khadijah A Knox-McDowell *00
Lee M. Koplin MHS *04
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Reba Krigelman

Thalia A. Langley *97
Courtney A. Laprade 04
Jeanne Lascha-Ryan
John R. Lawrence “05
Sherice A. Lawrence “06
Dwayne A. Lay ‘99
Frances B. Lee *07
Jermaine R. Lemon ‘96
Carmen J. Lesesne *00
Cassandra Lewis *96
Norma R. Lewis

Spencer H. Lewis *61
Krystal M. Lewis *06

J. Elliott Lightfoot, Jr. 89
The Links, Inc. Penn Towne Chapter
Nicole E. Livingston ‘07
Timera D. Loftin *02
Alicia M. Louis ‘04
Machelle Lovell

Marvin K. Lovell ‘99

Constance L. Lundy

Lerone V. Luster 06

Ayodeji O. Mabogunje *02
Ruth Maddox

Jawai M. Maith ‘00

Gary W. Majors ‘73

Merry Grace S. Majors ‘75
Westburn S. Majors *06

James B. Manley, Jr.

Gary B. Marek

Lakia C. Martin *04

Luis I. Martinez *07

Samuel L. Mason *50

Tonia L. Mason *00

Hasan R. Mateen '05

Chantelle C. Matthew 07
Karla M. Mauldin-Williams ‘99
Jason D. May

Brandee J.A. McAdoo *05
Shannon G. McCants *95
Randall E. McCaskill 197

Justin A. McDaniel *05
Herman McKeiver

Mirs. & Mis. Terrence D. McKelvey
Branden A. ('02) & Cherylynn A. ('02) McLeod
Frances L. McPhail *04
Kathleen B. McQueen

Bobby C. McQueen-Bey “07
Atya N. Meadows 97
FErica A. Mensah *07
Omar Miller *06

Sherlene Miller MHS *06
Frederick A. Miller *68
Carita Mitchell *01
Jakonah Mitchell *02
Mark C. Mitchell
Shannon G. Mitchell *05
Haajar Mobley “03

Salimh Mobley

Zchagiel M. Monroe *06
Keron O. Monroe *07
Tamika R. Montgomery ‘03
Patrice D. Morris *77
Ann Morrison

Sheray K. Morrison ‘02
Sterling Morse, Jr. *01
Karann A. Murphy ‘74
Donna Murray

Kevin D. Murray ‘81
National Sorority of Phi Delta Kappa Inc.
Bella Anne C. Ndubuisi *07
Rosalind E. Neal “81
Shareen T. Nelson *99
Kimberly N. Nelson *07
Tierney Nelson *97

Tabia N. Nicholas ‘96
Shanna I. Nicholas *07
Tony L. Nipper ‘07
Anthonia N. Nnamani ‘00
Brendon E Noel *00

N. Wesley Norton *58
Victoria C. Odom 00
Kwabena Oduro-Kontoh ‘07
Dana L. Olds *99

Amma Osei-Bonsu 01
Lauretta E. Ovadje 07
Shelli L. Owens ‘92
Dante E. Palmer *99
Monica L. Panzo ‘07
Tomica A. Parham ‘01
Tanyetta Parker 97

Basil L. Parker 96

Jamal K. Parker *98
Stephanie C. Parker ‘98
Tika L. Parks ‘99

Francina D. Parrish 07
Van Buren Payne "00
Tiffini Pearson ‘97
Shakeara N. Pearson *04
Mr. & Mrs. Kenneth Penn
James Pepple

Aisha R. Pereira ‘05
Michael W. Perkins *07
Denise S. Perry *99
Jameeka T. Phillips “03
Bruce Phillips

Todd A. Phillips

Monica N. Pierce “02
Duquesa N. Pike *01
Ralph L. Pipes

Matthew V. Poole “05
Stanley E Postell *75

Nigel R. Powell ‘93
Ronny J. Press *00

Forrest C. Preston *01
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Paul W. Previch

Eric D. Pritchard 02
Gerald C. Randolph *80
Rev. Norman M. Rates *50
Tia D. Redden ‘07

‘Walt W. Reeder, Jr.
Tynisha L. Rhone *05
Kiyona R. Rice 97
Stephen Richardson
Allen T. Richardson *06
Ullin K. Rigby ‘05

Fred Riggins *97
Kaydion K. Riley ‘99
Cheneir N. Rivers ‘04
Herreshemiah E. Robinson ‘96
Sheane J. Robinson 02
Howard S. Robinson ‘63
Janina C. Robinson *00
Tanesha R. Robinson *06
Edward Rodriguez
Richard E. Rogers, Jr. “92
Dawn L. Ross ‘04
Shamar T. Rumph *06
Najeeb A. Salahuddin “03
Eyiwunmi Salako *07
Jamilla Sams *97

Dionna C. Samuel 02
Danielle N. Sanders *04
Miranda D Sanders “01
Sherita A. Sargusingh *07
Jada A. Savoy ‘04

Marc R. Schoder

Colette N. Scott 95
Melissa A. Scott

Jan L. Scott *84

Gary L. Scotton ‘79
Luther J. Sewell, 11T *91
Hasinah A. Shabazz 05
Morgan Shaw "05

Chad Sheffield

Andrea S. Shell MHS 04
Anthony D. Sherland “07
Briquel A. Sherman ‘07
Doris S. Shirley

James Simington

Eugene M. Simmons 04
Grant A. Simmons ‘07
Jessica S. Sinclair *98
Carletta M. Skipworth *04
Stacey A. Small *07

Frank I. Smart ‘05
Tianda C. Smart *99
DeCarl J. Smith *04

E. Reginald Smith, III *91
Rasheeda T. Smith 02
Nydira S. Smith ‘05
Nakia Smith *07
Christopher W. Smith *06
Mr. & Mrs. Lawrence Solish
Tiana M. Stephens *02
Charlene E. Stepney “98
Rosalind J. Steptoe-Jackson *92
Craig L. Stevenson "86
Camille D. Stewart ‘05
Felicia L. Stone 96
Robert C. Suggs
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Tymisha M. Sweet *06
Paul M. Syreeta *00
Ernestine Tarrant

Yakii Tate *05

Cory T. Taylor *97

Dr. Vannie Taylor, IV *00
Dora T. Tetteyfio ‘97
Melinda K. Thomas *96
Carl R. Thomas *02
Donyell L. Thomas ‘99

David S. Thomas *89
Odetta S. Thompson *97
Tanisha Thorpe 05
Tammie Tilson *04

Aixa O. Torres *07
Latifah Travis-Bey *99
Zakia M. Travis-Bey "01
Nadiah T. Trotman ‘00
Gemez M. Tull “98
Dean M. Tyree ‘75

L. Jackson Thomas, II, Esq. *73

Nneka Ukpabi *99
Thenard Valentin *04
Henry E. Vantassel

Joan A. Waddell *00
Brian J. Wade

Aiyanna Wade

Terrance A. Wakefield *96
Naeemah S. Waleed *03
Beverlee A. Walker *00
Lavel A. Walker ‘04
‘Wanda L. Walker *90
Charnita V. Walker ‘07
Uriel H. Wallace, Jr. *51
Jermaine L. Wallace *02
Jennifer A. Ware *01
Karyn Y. Washington ‘89
Crystal A. Watson ‘97
LeSheem S. Watson *97
Quiana S. Watson-Ross ‘99
Joseph N. Weaver *89
Felicia D. Webster *02
Maurice D. Webster ‘04
Alfreda P. Wells *97
Pamela J. Rich Wheeler
Paul D. White *04

Angela T. Williams *97
Kenneth B. Williams ‘64
Antonia T. Williams MHS ‘00
Cheryl A. Williams
Clinton E. Williams ‘04
Darrell S. Williams “98
Kymberly J. Williams *00
Mea E Williams 05
Pamela M. Williams *94
Ricardo Williams *97
Sabrina M. Williams ‘05
Thomasine Williams ‘77
Malika A. Williams ‘97
Ciera Williams ‘07

Evita L. Williams 04
Michael Williams *01
Quinette S. Williams *04
Eboni L. Willis 05
Tiffanie D. Wilson ‘97
Trena W. Wilson ‘97
Rodney K. Wilson ‘79
Malcolm M. Wilson *99
Jermaine D. Wilson *00
Keshia Winningham *07
Edward Wolfe

Ronald C. Wooden 99
Audra K. Woodley ‘87
Robert M. Woolbright *00
Rev. Galen R. Work *56
Adrian A. Worrell *01
Stanley M. Worrell
Shellyann N. Wright 97
Amber N. Yancy *07
Ibrahim Yetunde *07
Samuel D. Yohannes ‘00
Latoya S. Young ‘04
Takeyah A. Young *99
Nisha T. Young “03
Garfield C. Yuille ‘91
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Lincoln University of the
Commonwealth System of Higher Education

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Lincoln University of the
Commonwealth Systern of Higher Education (the University) as of June 30, 2007, and the related statements of
activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial staicments are the responsibility of the
University's management. Our responsibility is o express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. The prior year's summarized comparative information has been derived from the 2006 financial
stutements and, iz our repon dated Owtober 14, 2006, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements,

We conducted our audit in accordance with euditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable 1o finencial audits contained in Govermmenr Auditing Standards, issued
by the Compiroller General of the United Swmtes. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance wbowt whether the financial stalements are free of material missmtement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the smounts and disclosures in the financial
staternents. An sudit also includes assessing the sccounting principles wsed and significant estimares made by
managemnent, as well as evaluarng the overzll finsncial statement presentation,. We believe that our audit
provides a rensonable basis for our opinion.

Tn our opinon, the financizl statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
pusibion of the University as of Jane 30, 2007, and the changes in it8 net assets and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally eccepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Govermmend Auditing Standards, we have also issued cur report dated Cctober 22, 2007,
on ouf consideration of the University's internal contral over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.,
The purposc of the report is 1o describe the scope of our testing of internal vontrol over financial reporting and
compliance and the resulls af the testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or o compliance, Thet report is an imegral part of an aedit performed in accordance with
Grovernment Auditing Standards and should be considerad in assessing the results of our audis,

Our sudit was eonducted fior the purpose of forming &n opinien on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Nsderal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis a3 requited by LS. Office of Management nod Budget Circular A-133, Awdits of States, Local
Lioversmmants, and Non-Prafit Crganizations, and i4 nol a required part of the basie Anancial statements. Such
information kat been subjected to the enditing procedhres applied in the awdit of the besic financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, m relation w the basic fnencisl statements taken a3
a whaole,

St 2007 T Loprarm, O, Bogillin | Aoswil, P
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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF FIN ANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2007
{WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2006)

207 2006
ASSETS
Cash equivalents and cash equivalents § 12819385 §  E6524611
Cash equivalents restricied for constmuction 2,852 75,101
Accounts receivable:
Students B2,181 230,696
Federal and state governments 7RE, 364 776,973
Other 49,235 92335
Prepaid expenses 254,079 462,155
Inventories 165,054 168,107
Loans receivable, net Q46,640 915,266
Long-term investinents (note 3) 24.641,777 20,425 434
Invesiments restricred for debt service 2,872,204 2,749 781
Funds held in trust by ethers 3,673,834 3,315,659
Plant and equipment, net 02403039 093,562,157
Bond issuance costs, net 1,266,188 1,308 850
Total assets 139964894 § 132,756,125
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,003,713 5,456,028
Student deposits 690,507 612,154
Deferred revenue 202,299 204,009
Capital lease obligations 1282214 1,647,152
Bonds payable (net of discount) 18,665,743 38,794 562
Assel retirement obligation 1,722,000 1,758,000
Government advances for student loans 1,165,062 1,051,739
Total liabilitics 50,731,538 49,523,734
Net assets:
Unrestricied 30,502,034 29,702,496
Temporanly restricted 43,736,207 40,008,417
Permanently restricted 14,905,115 13,521,478
Total net assets 80 213 3156 83,232,391
Tolal liabilities and net assets b3 135,964,854 § 132,756,125

2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
{(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2006)
Temwporarily  Permanently Total Tatal
Unrestrieied  Mestricted  Restricred 2047 2004
Dp-u-&.l.i.ig Bevenunes
Exhacation and penecal:
Tuitiem and fees E 2431557 8§ - K - % 2455 5 21,75%249
Hoom and boerd TLE%4, B52 - - 12,834,852 11,269,541
Lzes acholarship allveances (1435515) - = (3435515} (3,516.946)
Student charges, nec 3LT14.513 - - 33, 714413 200R] 1644
Government apgropainticns 13,516,001 - - L3, 5161HHE 12,534,030
Coolracis and spensored activities 6,193 030 = - fi 1 93080 4 H2E 455
Privatz gifts and gramis G005 1, mp B - 2.56d).504 1272500
Investments:
Endvwment incoms - 630 15T - LEC AT 14 51
Db invesiment income T 403 297 443 - 1018558 519,683
Cither 400,103 - - 0%, 102 14, BK5
Nt axseds nel=ased From restricliomns T {0, SHE) - . =
Total revenwses 55013253 2,136,119 - JR051.372 A5 AT AT
Crperating Expenses
Inscruction 13163, 15%0 . - L5, 065, 1 6 L4, 90 475
Research 4. 176572 = 4,176,572 53,434 404
Acaderic suppon 4, 305, 2] - 4,05, 250 3,802,591
Student services 7,861,089 = T D8 7,564,302
Awxiliary enerprises G 532.630 - 9,352,630 2,177,164
Administraticn and institetiosal supgor 13,674,332 - - 13,674,332 QA35 630
Fundraising 681,331 . - 661,331 6R1923
Toe! expenses 35,154,430 - = 55,194,430 48,203 405
Change in net azsets froom aparations TH0,823 2136.119 - 2 850,042 1614452
A i-0perati ng revenses
Coartibuliens-endeement - . 1,015,460 1,L1Z dab 1,057,333
Realized and unrealizond gains fram investrents TaT1E 285019 158,177 ZURZ01L T.180,25K
Less: endoament fumd gaing ofilized ander spending policy - - - - [237,363)
Toial pen-opersing revennss 78,713 2,545 119 1 473,637 4097471 1,580,228
Depreciaticn on gtarg comfriated capital assets (note 133 - {953.445) = [%53.448) (R 169}
Change in met asaets from non-opersing revenue 78,715 1,591,671 1 473,637 3044005 1,178,059
Total change in net assess 95,538 372700 1 AT1,83T 6100 55 2791540
Mel misely:
Mt msscE, bogmmlag of year 29 TOE 490 40,00k 417 13521478 £3,232.50] B A50 850
Med masels, end of year §OI0503034  E43 736207 5 14895115 3 RU2IIER & @323 391
3
The secompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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LINCOILN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2006)

Cash Mows from operating activitics
Change m net asseis

Adjustments te reconcile chags in net assets 1o net cash provided

by operating activities:
Capital project cois paid by state
Atnriization
Dizpreciation
Reulized and unrealized gaing from investments
Contributions of permmanently restricted assels
Adlerannee tor doubtful acommis, sudents
Clange in assets ancd linkalites:
Accounts receivahle
Inveriboeias
Prepaid expenscs
Futels held n trust by others
Accounts payable and uoerued expenscs
Sludend deposits
Deferred revenps
Cipvernment advances for eedent Joans
et cash provided by operating activitics

Cash Aovws from investing activities
Purchases of plant and equipment
Purchase of investments
Digbursements of loans to studenis
Bepoyments of loans Trons stedents

Met cash used 10 investing activities

Cash flows from financing aciivities

Principal pavments on capital lesse bligations

Principal payrsants o boid obhgutions

Caplial lease proceeds

Purchaze of investments restricted for debt service

Decrease (mcrease) in restricled cash equivalens

Contributions of permenently reatricted assets
Met cash provided by financing activities
Met mcrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalets, end of vear

Supplecnental information:
Interest paid

2007 20
5 6,004, 965 5 2701541
- {148,715)
59,843 | 50,843
4,422 350 4,074,617
(2952 010 (1,180,260
(1473637 (818,242
{55.342) (21,237)
200,224 B35,767
3,053 1,340
208,076 - {196,572
(358,177} {52374
1,511,685 340,023
78,353 157424
{1,800 {104.531)
113,323 B3.046
7,726,046 5913270
(3,263,272) (14,849,263)
(1,234.333) (373,045}
{256,132) (182,531)
__2%0.100 1 A 1A
4,473,637} {14,692 Bi2)
(364,938) (216,345)
(143 0041) {355,000)
- 1,383,519
{122 483) (B2,666)
72,249 11,218,290
1,473 637 18242
213 465 12,766,039
4,166,774 3,986,448
BASLA11 4 bt | 63
§__ 11810385 ¥ 8652611
3 2,047.439 § 2,043 622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

reneral

Lincoln University of the Commonwealth System of Higher Education {the
University) 1s a state-related, nonsectarian, coeducational, four-vear institution of
higher education with an Undergraduate campus located n southern Chester
County, Pennsylvania eand a Graduate campus located in  Philadelphia
Pennsylvania. Under the Lincoln University Act of the General Assembly of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, 12 of the University’s 3% hoard members are
appeinted by afficials of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Basis of Presentation

The financial stalements of the Universily have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting whereby revenue is recognized when esmed and cxpenses are
recorded when incarred, without regard to the date of receipt ot peyment of cash.

MNet assels and revenues, expenses, pains and losses are classified based on the
existence of donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the University
are classified and reported as follows:

Permanenily restricted — Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permancntly by the University {i.e., endowment).

Temipararily restricted — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions thar
may be met either by actions of the University andfor the passage of time.

Unresiricted = Net assets that are not subject 1o donor-imposed restrictions.

Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Expiration of
temporary reatrichions (i.e., the denor-stipulated purpose has been lulfilled and/or
the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications from
temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets. Temporary restrictions
on gifts to acquire long-lived assets are considered met in the period in which the
assets are acquired or placed in service,

Revenues from sources other than contributions and related endowment income
are reporied as increases in unrestricted net assets in the period camed. Revenues
under grants, contracts, and stmilar agreements with sponsoring organizations arc
recognized as allowable expenditures are incurred.
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MOTE 1:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 3¢, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Mon-operating revenoes include contributions of assets to be held in perpetuity as
well as realized and nnrealized gains from investments.

Contributions, including unconditional promises to  give (contributions
receivable, are recognized as revenues in the period received. Conmibutions
received for capital projects or perpetual endowment funds arc reported as non-
operating revenucs.  All other contributions are reported as operating revenues,
Contributions and other revenues with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in
the same period are reported as unrestneted revenues. |f restrictions are not met
mn the same period, then such revenues are reported as temporarily restricted,
Conditione]l promises to give are not recognized until the conditions are
substantially met. Contributions of asscts other than cash are recorded at their
estimated fair value at the date of the gifi, cxcept that contributions of works of
art, histerical treasures end similar asscls held as part of collections are not
recognized or capitalized. Contributions o be received after one year are
discounted at g rate commensurate with the risk invelved. Amortization of the
discount is recorded as additonal contribution revenue, Allowance is made for
estimated uncollectible contributions based upon management’s judgment and
analysis of the creditworthiness of the donors, past eollection expenience and
ather relevant factors,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents nclude short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less,

Inventories

Inventories consist of supplics and are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost
or markel

[nvestments

Investmenis in equity securities with readily determinable fair market values and
all investments in debt securities are reported al fair value with gams and losses
mcluded in the statement of activities,

Certain accumulated realized and unrcalized gaing on endowments are considered
temporsarily restricted based on a Penmsylvania law that limits the use of
acenmlated gains on endowmenl assets,
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NOTE 1:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Condnued)

The law permits a not-for-profit organization to spend a portion of such gains on
endowment under a spending formula (see note 3).

Funds ITeld in Trust by Oélers

The University is also the beneficiary of centain immevocable perpetial trusts held
and administered by others, The University does not invest these funds, not does
the University have responsibility for their management, The present values of
the estimated future cash receipts from the trusts are recognized as assets and
contribution revenues at the dates the trusts are established. Changes in fair value
are recognized as permanently restricted gains and losses.

Plant and Equipment, Including Assets Made Available and Retirement
Obligations

Land, buldings and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at fair market.

value at the date of gift less aceumulated depreciation. Depreciation of buildings
and equipment is computed over the estimated economic lives of the assets using
the straighi-line method and recorded as non-operating expense. Depreciation for
donated capital assets is recorded as a non-operating expense since the related
revenue is recorded a8 a non-operating item. Estimated economic lives range from
vears for cquipment to 50 vears for certain buildings.

The General State Authority of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the
Authoriiy) has made available to the University, nominsl cost, certain buildin i
and other improvements that it has constructed on campus. In connection with
such construction, the University has deeded to the Authority tracts of land as
siles tor certam of the projects. The projects have been financed by the Authority,
which has retained title and ownership to the buildings, improvements and sites.
‘The buildings 2rd improvemenis have been recorded in the financial statements at
estimated construction cosl

The Authority has made available to the University certain buildings and
improvements under lease ammangements {Note 5). The estimated construction
costs of these projects have been recorded in the plant accounts with a
corresponding liability under capital lease obligations to the Authority,
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NOTE 1:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Asset Retirement Obligations

Asgset Retirement Obligations (ARO) are initially recorded at fair value and the
releted asset retirement costs are capitalized, Uncertainty about the timing of an
obligation’s settlement is factored inte the measurement of the lability. Asset
retirement cosis are subscquently depreciaied over the useful lives of the related
assets. Subsequent Lo inilisl vecognition, the University records period-to-period
changes in the ARO"s liability resulting from the passage of time and revisions to
either the timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash
flows. The University derecognizes ARO lizbilitics when the related obligations
arc settled.

Bond Issuance Costs and Disconnt

Cosis related to the issuance of bonds and the bond discounts are amartized over
the life of the related debt on a straight-line basis, which approximates the
effective yield method.

Government Advances for Student Loans

Funds provided by the federal government under the Perking Losn Program are
loaned to qualificd students and may be reloaned after coliection. These funds are
ultimately refundable to the government, and as such, are recorded as liabilitics.

Lise of Estfimatos

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lighilities
and disclosure of conlingsnl assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimaras.

Fiederal Income Tazes

No provision for federal income taxes has been inchuded in the financial
slatements because the University qualifies as a tax-exempl organization under
Sechion 501{¢)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 2: DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND (Subsequent Event)

Lincoln University has & Debt Service Reserve Fund (DSRF) held by the Trustee
for its 2004 Municipal bonds.

On August 23, 2007, Lincoln Tniversity (University) invested $2,626.504 held in
the Debt Service Reserve Fund (DSRF) in an uncellateralized Guaranteed
Investment Contract (GIC) with MBLA Inc., the initial GIC provider (Provider),
related to the University's Series 2004 Municipal Bonds {Bonds).

The GIC represents the unsecured generzl obligation of the Provider to provide
repayment to the Trustee of moneys invesled in the GIC and semi-annual imterest
al an annual rate of 5.347% until June 1, 2036. The payvment oblipation of the
Provider under the GIC is unconditionally guaranteed by MBIA Inc. {Provider's
Cuarantor}). The fnancial strength rating of the Guarantor is "AAA" by S&P and
"Aaa" by Moody's.

After the GIC matures and all debt serviee on the Municipal bonds has been paid,
the DSRF will be used to pay any remuining debt service on the Municipal Bonds.

NOTE 3: INVESTMENTS

Investments maintained for endowments are summarized as follows at June an,

2007:
The Common Fund:
Short-term 3 5,442,108
Bond fund 4,162 836
Equity fund 14,733 K58
Venture capita] & realty 10,308
Equity sccurities 27410
Other investments 205,257
524,641,777

Individual endowment fund records are maintained depending on the amount of
the gift. Individual funds subscribing to or disposing of units from pooled funds
arc gllocated units on the basis of the market value per unit at the beginning of the
fiscal yoar in which the transaction ocewrs. Investment income from pooled
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NOTE 3:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

invesiments 15 recorded as unrestricted or temperarily restricted revenue based on
these units,

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania law permits the University to allocate o income
each year a portion of endowment net realized gamins under an endowment

spending policy,

The University authorized the drawdown of 3% in fiscal year 2007 and 3.5% in
fiscal year 2006 of the University's endowment funds calculated on a three-year
truiling average market value. Based upon this policy, the Board of Trustees
authorized the use of $612,725 for cumment operations for the vear ended June 30,
2007. To the extent that actual endowment income from these funds is less than
the predetermined amecunt, accumulated mains are made available tor operations
1o fund the difference as follows:

Authorized endowment drawdown g GB12,725
Less: net interest and dividend income endowment 639,157
Eamings above (below) drawdown b (26,432}

The following schedule summarizes the investment return in the statement of
activitics:

Dividends and interast, endowiment £ 639,157
Met realized and unrealized gain on investments 2982,011
Eetum on investments 3621168
Less: Endowment investment return released (612,725)
Investment gain included in non-operating activities S 1,005,443

Investment fees were $4 1,980 for the vear ended June 30, 2007.
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NOTE 4:

MNOTE 5;

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2807

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment as of June 30, 2007 consisted of the following:

Land and improvemenis b Q06,161
Building and improvements 112,012,377
Furnimre, fixiures and equipment 14,763,791
Construction in progress 3,549,567
131,232,206
Less: accumulated depreciation (38,829,257}
Mel property, plant and equipment $ 92403039

The University recognized depreciation expense of $4,422 350 for the vear ended
Jume 30, 2007.

LONG-TERM DEET AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS

A summary of the University’s long-term debt, capital lease obligations and other
liahilitics as of June 30, 2007, is as [ollows:

Bonds Payvahle

Cm June 10, 2004, the Universily borrowed through the Pennsylvania Economic
Development Financing Authority Revenue Bonds Sedes 20044, 530,230,000
and through the Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority
Federally Taxable Revenue Bonds Series 2004B, $9.910,000, both maturing
through the year ending June 30, 2036. The net proceeds of the 2004 A Bonds
financed the payment or reimbursement of the cost of construction, acquisition,
installation and equipping of an approximately 400-bed residence hall on the
campus of the University; refinanced approximately $4 million of the outstanding
principal amount of a loan from Education Direct Loan Mortgage Corporation;
funded a portion of the debt service reserve fund for the Bonds: funded the
interest on a portion of the 20044 Bonds from the date of issuance thereof until
December 1, 2005; and covered the bond issuance costs. The net proceeds of the
2(04B Bonds were used to refinance approximately $9.1 million of the
outstanding principal amount of a lean from Education Direct Loan Mortgage
Corparation, the proceeds of which were used in part to finance the acquisition of
the Unmiversity’s facilities located at

3020 Market Street in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and to refiovale certain other
capital improvements at the University's mam campus; funded the remaining
partion of the debt service reserve fund for the Bonds; and covered the related
bond issuance costs,
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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2047

NOTE &: LONG-TERM DEBT AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS {Continued)

The University shall be permilted, at any time and from time to time, to prepay all
or any part of the amounts pavable, together with such other amounts as shall be
sufficient to redeem all or a portion of the Bonds in accordance with the
provisions of the indenture at 1000% of par value.

Funds drawn from the Series 2004A Bonds Project Fund were spent on capital
expenditures. Under the terms of the Series 2004A and 20048 Bonds, funds are
maintained by the bond trustee, US Bank, Philadelphis, PA. Interest rates range
[rom 2.000 percent to 6.000 percent and interest is payable semiannually on June
1 and December | of each year. The net interest cost for all coupons and
matirities 15 5,2 1%,

Frincipal maturities [or cach of the next five fscal years are sumumerized as

follows;
Series 2004 Series 2004 . Total
Year A Bonds B Bonds Interest Amount

2008 ¥ 100, {40 § 550,000 £ 1,972,784 % 2,622,784
200 400,000 ZE0,000 1,946,504 2,626,504
2010 415,000 290, 000 1,921,224 2,626,224
2011 425,000 305,000 1,893,146 2,623,146
2012 440,000 320,000 1,562 350 2622350
2013-2017 1,985,000 2 380,000 8,724 660 13,089,660
2018-2022 3,900, 000 1,705, MK 7.493,326 13,098,326
2023-2027 6,330,000 850,000 5933410 13,113 410
2028-2036 16,135,000 2,325,000 5,136,522 23,596,522
Total § 30,130,600 § & (05,000 § 36883926 % 76,018,926

Bonds puyable are reported net of the applicable bond discount of §469,257 as of
June 30, 2007.

Capital Leases
The University leases @ residence hall and certain equipment from the

Pennsylvania Department of Education on a sublease from the Authorily. The
University has also acquired equipment and improvements through capital leases.
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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 5; LONG-TERM DERT AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Such leages, which cover substantially the entire, cstimated useful lives of the
assets are classified as capital leases and are recorded as plant and equipment on

the statement of financizl position.

In Augunst 2005, the University signed a live-year financing agreement with a
maximum borrowing capacity of $3.5 million for a new administrative and
accounting software system. The debt s not a general obligation of (he
University and does not heve recourse against either revenues or assets of the
University, As of June 2007, approximately 51.466 million of this financing had

been wtilized,

The following is a summary of property held under the capital leases at June 30,

20007

Lomraine Hansberry Residence Hall & 1,727,131

Capital lease equipment 2,030,392
Capital lease accounting software 1,383,518
5,141,041
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,927,139)
Met property, plant and equiptment § 2,213,902

The fellowing is a schedule, by vears, of future minimum lease paviments under
capital leases, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments

as of June 30, 2007:

Year ending June 3,

2008
2004
2010
2011
Total minimum lease payments
Less: amount representing interest

Tytal

b3 434,190
430,235
426,.28]
102,156

1,392,862
(110,648)

Present value of net mininmom lease pavments § 1,282,714
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NOTE 5:

NOTE &:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 21417

LONG-TERM DEBRT AND LEASE OBLICATIONS (Continued)

Line of Credit

The University has a 86 mallion line of credit with a lacal bank. There was no
outstanding batance under the line of credit a5 of June 30, 2007,

Nothing was drawn down from the line of credit subsequent 1o June 30, 2007,

OPERATING LEASES

The University leases equipment for general operations, All leases as of June 30,
2007 will expire at various dates within the next four years. Operating lease
cxpense was 5392, 146 for the year ended June 30, 2007,

The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum lesse payments under
operating leases as of June 30, 2007:

Year ending June 30, Tatal
2008 $ 343,552
200 290,971
20080 279 924
2011 192,803

§_1.107.250
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NOTE 7:

MNOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2007 arc available for the
following purposes:

2007

Loans ] 7.490
Invested in stale contributed capital assets 26,368,559

Purpose resinictions including scholarships 17,360,158

§ 43,736,207

Permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2007 are available for the
following purposes:

Funds held in trust by others primarily restricted for scholarships 8 3,673,835
Endowment principal primanly restricted for scholarships 11321 280

% 14,995,115

GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS

The University received appropriations of $13,516,000 from the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania for operations for the vear ended June 30, 2007,

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The University perticipates m the Teacher’s Insurance and Annuily
Association/College retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF), a multi-employer
defined contribution pension plan that is made available to all emplovees. The
University contributes 5% of eligible emplovees” gross salary and malches
employees’ contribulions up to a maximum of 5%. Retirement benefit expense for
the year ended June 30, 2007 was $1,675,730.

CONTINGENCIES

The University has been named in or is an indirect party to a number of suits,
alleging such matiers as unfair labor practices, harassment, discrimination due to
sex and/or national origin, negligence, contract violations and persanal injury.
Material claims against the University that require disclosure are as follows:
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NOTE 10;

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 20487

CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Threatened Claims/ Asserted Claims

reneral Services Uilit ] Igation

For several years, Lincoln University had been interested in, but not directly
named a party in, litigation brought before the Commonwealth Board of Claims
("BOC”) against the Department of Generai Services (“DGS™) by two
coniraclors, Apex Piping Systems, Ine. (“Apex™), which had asseried claims of
roughly $1,800,000, plus asttorney’s fees and interest, and Ryan Construction
Company {“Ryan"), which asserted claims of $1,141,533, plus attomney’s fees and
interest, relating to alleged delay and other damages suffered by the contractors in
connection with work on utility upgrade projects on the main campus including
consiruction of a utility tunnel.

In addition to its BOC action, Apex also had filed a lawsuit directly against
Lincoln claiming that Lincoln was unjustly enriched to the extent it received
BOIE,000 of temporary heat from Apex doring the DGS project. That claim
overlapped the Apex BOC claim, In June 2006, in the face of a motion to dismiss
filed by the University, Apex withdrew the case. without prejudice, but continued
to threaten suit against Lincoln. '

Regarding Ryan's claims, DGS on behalf of iself and Tincoln threatened
counterclaims for leaks and defects in the tunnel Ryan constructed.

Although Lincoln was not an acmal parly te the construction coniracts, Lincoln
had determined that as a practical matter, it could ultimately bear a portion of the
cost ot any potential judgments meurred by DGS. In addition, Lineoln had agreed
lo reimburse DGS $300,000 to cover some of the additional costs of temporary
heat on the Apex project, and further agreed that if Apex won a judgment sgainst
DGS for additional heat costs, the University would contribute up to $229,000
more.

Ultimately, settlements were reached between DGS, Apex, and Ryan, with
Lincoln’s approval. [MGS funded all settlement sums. Apex was paid an additional
$1,050,000 in setllement of all claims Apex hed against DGS and Lincoln relating
to the project.

Ryan’s claims agsinst DGS and Lincoln were fully settled for a payment o Ryan
of an additional 1,000,000, As part of the setlement, Ryan was also compelicd
o do certain repair and leak mitigation work om the mnnel. That work was
completed and accepted by DGS on or about July 11, 2007.
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NOTE 10:

NOTE 11:

NOTE 12:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 3, 2147

CONTINGENCIES {Continued)

All ¢laims by Ryan and Apex ase fully settled with no direct liability being borne
by Lincoln. The Umversity, however, has not determined the full financial impact
of these settiements.

Orther than the items discussed above, the University believes that the resolution
of any outstanding claims and lifigation will not have a material adverse affect
upon the Universily™s financial statements.

RELATED FARTY TRANSACTIONS

The University’s By-Laws require full disclosure of any related party matters or
conflicts of interest of Board members, Affected Board members are prohibited
from participating in such matters without approval in writing from the Board on
the terma of their allowed participation. The Umniversity believes that this policy is
being followed and that there are no related party transactions to report.

MAIN CAMPUS REVITALIZATION PROJECT

The Commonwealth of Peonsylvania has begun seversl projecis totaling
approximately 3214400000 to revitalize the Main Campus of Lineoin
University. The projects that have been completed and placed in service replaced
the infrastructure of steam, eleclncily, water, sewage, voice amd data
cormimumIcations.

There were no assets placed in service during 2007, Each year, deprecistion
expense 15 recorded until the assets are fully depreciated over their 3-vear useful
lives. Due to the material nature of the revitalization project and its potential
impact to the financiel stalements, State Contributions are recorded as nom-
operating capital centribulions when donated end placed into service. The State is
curently funding renovation of several campus buildings. The projects are
expecied o be completed in over the next five fiscal yvears. The University will
record them as non-cperaling confributed capital when place in serviee.

Depreciation for donated capital assets is recorded as a non-operating expense
since the related revenues are recorded as non-operaling ilems.
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NOTE 10:

MNOTE 11:

NOTE 12:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Adl ¢leims by Ryan and Apex are fully settled with no direct liability being borne
by Lincoln, The University, however, has not determined the full fnancial impact
of these settlements.

Onther than the items discussed above, the Universily believes thai the resolution
of any outstanding claims and lingation will ot have 2 material adverse affect
upon the University’s financial staternents.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The University's By-Laws require full disclosure of any related party matiers or
conflicts of interest of Board members. AfMected Board members are prohibited
from participating in such matiers withoul approval in writing from the Board on
the terms of their allowed participation. The University believes that this policy is
being followed ard that there are no related party transactions to report.

MAIN CAMPUS REVITALIZATION PROMECT

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has begun several projects totaling
approximately 5214.400,000 to revitalize the Main Campuz of Lincoln
University. The projects that have been compleied and placed i service replaced
the infrastructure of steam, electricity, waler, sewage, voice and data
communications,

There were no assets placed in service during 2007. Each year, depreciation
expense is recorded until the assets are fully depreciated over their 30-year useful
lives. Due to the material nature of the revitalization project and ils potential
impact o the financial statements, State Contributions are recorded as non-
aperating capital contributions when donated and placed into service, The State is
currently funding renovation of several campus buildings. The projects are
expected to be completed in over the next five fiscal years. The University will
record them as non-operating contributed capital when place in service.

Depreciation for donated capital assets is recorded as & non-operating expense
since the related revenues are recorded as non-operating iterms.
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NOTE 13:

NOTE 14: -

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT

On May 30, 2007, the University entered into an off balance sheet Master Lease
agreement for 1is 3020 Market Street, Philadelphia property. Synterra Partners,
L.P. is the lessee. For the 75-year term of the lease, the lessce is responsible for
all renovations in the building, most taxes and insurance, all operating expenses,
utilities, repairs, maintenance and property management, security, and real estate
broker services for leasing to commercial tenants,

The University has retained full ownership of the land and building. There is no
recourse for any of the debts or habilities of the lessee resulting from the
renovations, and the University hes no lishility for such improvements, The
University has the right to occupy one floor and a small portion of another for 51
per year for the entive lease lerm. For all other space in the building, the
University has assigned all curremt and future tenants and rents 1o the lessee.

After 2011, the University has rights to a share of certain future net profits, with
no graranteed of minimum amount, from sub-leases by the lessee.,

The Master lease is being treated as an operating lease for accounting purposcs.
The University continues to amortize its original investment in the building over a
U year useful life. The recorded asset value at June 30, 2007 for this property
was $7.712,086, and the acoumulated depreciation was $1,320,144. All
renovations to the building are considered building improvements of the lessce
and are not assets of the University.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL DATA

The financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006 are presented
for comparative purpeses only to provide a basis for companison with the 2007
financial data and are not intended to present all information necessary for a fair
presentation in accordunce with accounting principles generally sccepted in the
United States of America.
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Our consideration of intemal contrel over financial reporting was for the limited PUrpase
deseribed in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over finaneial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of oblaining reascnable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are
free of marterial misstatement, we performed tesis of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and matenial effect on the determinetion of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
apinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordimgly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govermmenr Auditing
Slevmclearady.

We noted centain matters that we reported to management of the University in a separate letter
dated October 22, 2007 _

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Trustees,
the audit commities, others within the University, and lederal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
speci fied parties.

Washington, D.C. 7 Lmgarn, 44, gﬂgpﬁu £ /ﬁi«om;f-., re.

Oclober 22, 2007

21)
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THOMPSON, COBB, BAZILIO & ASSOCIATES, PC

Certified Public Accountants and Management, Systems, and Financial Consultants
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAT. CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Board of Trustess
Lincoln Unmiversity of the
Commeoenwealth Sysiem of Higher Education

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Lincoln University of the Commonwealth System of Higher
Education {the University) with the types of compliance requirements described in the 1.5,
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007, except those
requirements discussed in the fourth paragraph.  The University's major federal programs arc
identified in the summary of auditor’s results scetion of the sccompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Compliance with the requitements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grents applicable w each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the University's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the University’s compliance based
on our awdil.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards gencrally sccepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standarcy, issucd by the Comptroller (ieneral of the United States: and
OMB Circular A-133, Awdits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Grganizations,
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabic assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred w above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the University's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered
necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our sudit does not provide a legal determination on the University's compliance with
those requiraments.

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above thal are applicable 1w each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2007, other than the requirements discussed in the following paragraph.

A Proferrosal Corporatinn

W, lokg. oo
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We did not audit the Universilty's compliance with requirements goveming student loan
repayments. Those requirements govern functions that are performed by EFG, Inc. (EFG).
Since we did not apply auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves as o compliance with those
requirements, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not
express, an opinion on compliance with those requircmenis.

EFG's compliance with the requirements goveming the functions that it performs for the
Lniversity was examincd by other accountants, whose report has been fumished to us. The
report of the oiher accountants indicates (hat complignee with those requirements was examined
in accordance wilh lhe Department of Education’s Audit Guide, Awdits of Federal Srudent
Financial Assisiance Programs af Participating Instttuiions and Tnstitution Servicers. Based on
our review of the scrvice organization accountants’ report, we have determined that all of the
compliance requirements included in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are
appliceble Lo the major programs in which the University participates are addressed in either our
report or the report of the service organization accountants. Further, based on our review of the
service organization accowntants’ report, we have determined that it does not contain any
findings ol noncompliance that would have a direct and material effect on the University's major
P-TIJ!:."I_.:EITIE.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, coniracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our awdit, we considered the
University's internal control over compliance with the requurements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
q:rpmu:r:a an the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinicn on the effectiveness of the University’s intemal control over compliance.

Fequirements governing stodent loan repayments are performed by EFG. Internal control over
compliance relating to such functions was reported on by other accountants in accordamee with
Department of Educstion’s Audit Guide, Audits of Federal Student Financial Assistance
Programs of Porticipating  instfvwiions and Insiindion Servicers. A copy ol the service
organization sccountants” report has been furnished to s, However, the scope of our work did
not extend to miernal control maintained at EFG,

A conirol deficiency in an enlity’s internal contrel over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control docs not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely hasis. A significant deficiency 15 a
conirol deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, thal adversely affects the University's
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote like likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
meonacquential will not be prevented or detected by the University®s intemal comtrols, :
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A malenal weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that materizl noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will nol be prevented or detected by the University's internal
conirol,

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control thet might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Trustees,
the audit committee, others within the University and federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyonc other than these
specificd parties,

Washmgron, D.C. ‘ﬂnvbﬂm., M, g‘*gyfﬂ I Mﬁ, J’Df’

October 22, 2007
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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE COMMONWEALTH

SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE. 34, 2007
FY=Z007
Fedaral Federal Funding Aganny | Fedural
Program Tilks DV No. Pags Thiough Agency Expendilires
Beudeni Finandial Assistancs:
Fegoral Supplemantal Bducational
Dpportunity Grant [FSEQG) B4 0T Department of Educatlan 3 5Mama
Faderal Pall Grants 140687 Dapariment of Educalian 4545 HAS
Halioral Smart Grans 84376 Dapartment of Education 24,000
Acacamis Compalitvanese Grant B4_57E Dapartmient of Educatlan 271 265
Tofal Studant Financial Assistance 418818
Rsgsdrch and Development;
Asroapaa Eduration Services Frogram 43.001 National Sercnaisics ard Spscs Sdminisirston’ ParnStais Unhbeersity 11,311
Bialigical Sciences AT.0Td Matmonal Scencse Fauncadion 17,10
izt of Saghands Finanical Assistance Frogram 81.0:3 Dopartment ol Ersigy 160518
Aaithrilis, Musculcsksletal and Skin Dissasas
Fasaerch 144 Depariment af Health end Humen Serdces 163,138
Coopamiive Agrasmsnt o Impeeys Lhe Haalll
Bt of Mincrgy Population H3.004 Deparimant of Haakh ard Human SendcesMorchouse Linvarsiby 137,501
Child Hemith and Human Desidog imen]
Exiramumal Research 83,865 Depariment of Haalkh and Human Senices 4.5, Bl
MMEAS Mirartty Sandng BEtinilione Prooam 81923 Deparimant of Erergy 38 B4

Talsl Reeaarch and Developmend
Ddrar Fadars] Progeams:

Educatonal ond Humen Resourses
(Phliadciphie AMF)

Educagivnal and Humoan Resources (Histodzally
Glack Coleges and Universitias Program)
Educaticnal and Human Resources (Mo Longer

a Draam)

Educational and Husman Redduises (Malh and
Gumnos Partnonship of Groasar Phiiadelphia)

Tital CFOA AT OTE
Iirsarity Sciercs and bnginsanng Imoecsement

Higtneay Plarning and Constctian

Sunmer Food Service Pragram: for Childoan

Tida Il - Strangthaning Hislorcally Dlack
Collages and LUnksarsies

TRED Lipward Baunrd

LISAID Frrkgn Axssiance for Programs
Chorseas

Intermatioral Vistors Program §Fulbighl -
Hayes Program)

Hatlonal Erdowmant for tha Human Husnanitios

Copparsive Agmeamenl o improve e Haalth
Etahss of Mincrity Populaiion

Tatal Omar Faderal Avarnds

Tortal Expendikras of Fedaral Awsrds

4T.006 Mabpnal Scigncs Foundalicr'Draxel Univeraiy
AT DT8R Malised Sciencs Foundelon
47 006 Mationsl Sciance Foundetiony' University of Massachisefs, Ambars

47 NTE Malicnal Science Foundaton' Latate University

B2 120 Dapartmeil of Edusalion { University of Marsland, Eastern Shore

20206 LS. Dopartment of TransporationdSouth Canglines Sleis Uriversity
10,558 LLS, Dopariment of Agdoubure®annaylvania Daparlimesn of Educaticn

84,031 Daperimant of Eduratian
84,047 Dapartrrent of Ecucakian

SE.001 LS. Agercy for Intbemationsl Devalogimant’ Univemsizy of the
fuloromous Ragions cihe Carbbaan Coast for Hiceragua

16402 Department gf Btabg

45,144 Promston of Humanilies-Division Preservafion ord Acoass

B 004 Deapariment of Heakh and Human SsrdeesiMadonal Assonainmn
of Equal Opporunity

425, E51

FoL s
45409

44833

__ 4906
A AT0

8204

35,300
30,851

1,508, 35
532, 058
11 402
BS, 956
4848
2,606,118

$ 7983 756
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NOTE 1:

MNOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE COMMONWEALTH

SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 3, 2007

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The purpose of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {the Schadule) is
to present a summary of federal expenditures of Lincoln University (the
University) for the vear ended Tane 30, 2007,

For the purposes of the Schedule, federal awards have been classified into three
types: Stodent Financial Assistance Program Cluster, Research and Development
Cluster, and Other Federal Programs.

Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the activities of the
University, it 15 not intended to and does not present the finencial position,
changes in net assets or the cash flows of the University.

The Schedule is prepared on the accrusl basis using cost principles of OMB
Circular A-21,

PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM

The University participates in the Federal Perkins Loan program (CFDA No.
B4.038). The University did not receive any federal capital contributions under
the Federal Perkins Toan Program for the vear ended June 30, 2007,

Loans disbursed to students during the year ended June 30, 2007 wers $256,131,
The gross balence of Federal Perkins loans outstanding as of June 20, 2007 was
£2,525,211.

FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM

The University participatcs in the Federal Family Education Loen Pro gram under
CFDA  No. B4.032 (includes Federal Stafford Loans [subsidized and
unsubsidized] and the Federal Parent Loans for Undergraduate Students [FLUS)).
Loan disbursements under the Federal Family Education Loan Program for the
vear ended June 30, 2007 totaled $22,742,134.
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LINCOLN UNIVERSITY OF THE COMMONWEALTH

SYSTEM OF HIGHER EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINIMNGS AND UESTIONED COST
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2067

SECTION I- SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Stalements

The type of report issued on the financial statements..........n., e LU igualified
Repertable conditions or material weaknesses in intemal controls were
disclosed by the audit of the financial SEAEMENIET. ... ssisessesssssseerssssssaee. O
Noncompliance which is material to the financial Statements? ..o.ooeveoees s MO
Reportable conditions or material weaknesges in internal
control over major prograImaT e e ...No
Federsl Awards
The type of report issued on compliance for MAJOr PrOZIAMS ...coocecvereeeveress s Lnqualified
Internal Confrol Crver Major Programs:
Mﬂrmﬂl wca‘h‘:ss{'ﬁj ideﬂtiﬁﬁi‘:’ L e e R R R R R LR R L L L L L T T T T I [T Y N Y Y F R AT N YN e rNﬂ
Reportable conditionds) identified not
Considered to be material weakness(es)? ..o NG
Any audil Iindings which are required to be reported under Section
51a) of OMB Circular A-1337 e O ' 1
Major programs: Smdent Financial Assistance Program
Cluster, Research and Development Cluster, Tifle @I
(CFDA  34.031), Educational and Human Resources
(CFDA 47.076), and Upward Bound {CFDA 84.047)
Dollar threshold used to dlﬁtmgl.J.IEh between 1‘:.1:1: A and
Type B programs: 300,000
Anditee qualilied as a low-risk auditee under Section 530
of OMB Circular A-1337 .. covene Y S
SECTION IT - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS ..o, B
SECTION IIT - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS........... MNone
SECTION IV STATUS OF PRIOE YEAR FINDINGS......oooooceecveeeeas Mo Pror Year Findings
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Vision Statement

Lincoln University
is a premier Historically Black University that
combines the best elements of a liberal arts and
sciences-based undergraduate core curriculum and
selected graduate programs to meet the needs of those
living in a highly technological

and global society.

For more information about Lincoln University,
including directions to the campus, the University’s
Vision, Mission, Philosophy, and Goals,
visit our Web site ar

www.lincoln.edu.
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